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ALGER & ASSOCIATES, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Louisville
215 S. Mill Street
Louisville, OH 44641

To the Members of Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented component of
the City of Louisville, Stark County, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated June 17, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the
Comptroller General of the United States” Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct
misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies
resulting in more than a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and timely corrected.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider material
weaknesses, as defined above.

6927 Burgundy Ave. N.W. 542 Ablemarle Circle
North Canton, OH 44720 Delaware, OH 43015
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, Council,
and others within the City. We intend it for no one other than these specified parties.

G a ry L' Digitally signed by Gary L. Alger,

CPA, CFE, CGFM
DN: cn=Gary L. Alger, CPA, CFE,

A I g e r’ C PA’ CGFM, o=Alger & Associates, LLC,

ou, email=galger@neo.rr.com,

C F E, CG F M E):altjes 2011.07.13 21:10:51 -04'00
Alger & Associates, LLC
June 17, 2011
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Department of Finance

June 17, 2011

To the Citizens, Mayor-Councilmember, and MembéSauncil
of the City of Louisville, Ohio:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)hef City of Louisville (the City), Ohio for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 is hereby stduiThis CAFR represents the official reporthad
City of Louisville’s operations and financial pasit for the year ended December 31, 2010, and &éas b
developed to accurately detail the status of ttig f@iances to Louisville residents and electedicadfs,
investment banks and underwriters and other irtiedlegarties. This report is presented in comp#anc
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASBjtement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements
- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - fateéSand Local Governments”. It is intended to
provide pertinent and necessary information toctheens of Louisville.

State law requires that the City prepare theirrfaia statements in accordance with generally aedep
accounting principles (GAAP) and to have an autdieast every two years. The financial statemaeatts,

a minimum, should be the basic financial statemehtle City and include the notes to those statgsne
Although not required by law, management of the Gs decided to prepare this CAFR and to have an
annual audit. A further discussion of the audit ba found later in this letter.

Responsibility for accuracy, completeness, anchéais of the presentation and for all disclosurésres
with the City’'s management. We believe that thel@sed data are accurate in all material respeuxts a
are reported in a manner designed to present f&eyfinancial position and results of operatiohshe
City. All disclosures necessary to enable the eedd gain an understanding of the City’s financial
activities have been included in this report.

Background and General | nformation

The City of Louisville, encompassing an area ofragimately 5.4 square miles, is located in the east
central portion of Stark County, Ohio. The Citydha population of 9,186 as reported in 2010 by the
Bureau of Census. State Route 44 (North ChapekStand State Route 153 (Main Street) intersect in
the City business district, and United States Ré@t@asses through the northwestern corner of ittye C
In addition to the highway system, Norfolk and $@uh Railroad operates a line running between
Chicago and New York that passes through the cehtée City.

Louisville is a “home-rule” city as defined by tB¢ate of Ohio Revised Code and operates pursudst to
Charter under a Council-Manager form of governmefhe Mayor-Councilmember and four Council
members are elected at large on a nonpartisant baildour-year, staggered terms. The City Council
appoints the City Manager, who has full responigjbior carrying out Council policies and adminisieg
City operations. The City Manager appoints, wibhgent of Council, the Finance Director and CitylLa
Director. The Mayor-Councilmember and Council dppboards and commissions, which include the
Board of Zoning Appeals, Planning Commission, T€eenmission and Civil Service Commission.

\
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Louisville has the proud history of being natiopakcognized as Constitution Town. This is in hoob
the ratification of the U.S. Constitution in 1789 1952, a Louisville resident, Mrs. Olga T. Weber
petitioned municipal officials to establish a Cdtuston Day. Louisville’s presiding Mayor, Gerakl
Romary, proclaimed September 17, 1952 as that wiapha@ City. The following April, Mrs. Weber
requested that the Ohio General Assembly proclapte®nber 17 as statewide Constitution Day. A bill
to that effect was introduced, passed and signe@dwernor Frank J. Lausche. Additionally, in Augus
1953, at Mrs. Weber's urging, the United StatesaBepassed a resolution designating September 17-23
as Constitution Week. It was approved and signeéPresident Dwight D. Eisenhower. On April 15,
1957, the City Council of Louisville declared thetyC“Constitution Town”. The Ohio State
Archaeological and Historical Society later dondtmat historical markers explaining Louisville'slecas
originator of Constitution Day. These markerspleeed at each of the main entrances to the City.

The City’s population has steadily increased ovwer last 100 years. Even during the decade of the
1970’s, when every other city in Stark County’s plagion declined, Louisville still continued to gvo

The most active decades of growth were the 1920s1860s. Percentage population gains during those
two time periods were 55.9% and 34.6%, respectively

The development of the Colonial Foundry and theeBop Sheet Steel Corporation contributed directly
to the large population growth during the sub-urbation trends and the City’s active annexation
program. When Louisville passed the 5,000-popatathark in the 1950s, its status was changed from a
village to a city.

Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the City includesthis report all funds, agencies, boards, and
commissions that are controlled by, or dependenttwn City’s legislative branch. “Controlled byt o
“dependent on” the City is determined on the baklsudget adoption, taxing authority, outstandiettd
secured by revenues or general taxing authoritthefCity, and/or the City’s obligation to fund any
deficits that may occur. A more detailed desaniptof the reporting entity can be found in Note LA
the notes to the basic financial statements.

Ser vices Provided

The City provides the full range of municipal sees contemplated by its charter. These servichsda
security of persons and property (including polared fire), public health and welfare, leisure time
activities, community environment, basic utilityrgees (including water and sewer), transportation
(including street maintenance, ice and snow rempsaall general government (including administrgtion
The services are explained in more detail as falow

e SECURITY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY - To reduce thewms and effect of external
harms and to ensure an atmosphere of personaitgdicom external events. This includes, but
is not limited to, Police, Emergency Medical Seegicand Fire Divisions and street lighting.

e PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE - To provide for the phigal well being of the citizenry by
providing basic preventative health care or assigtavhen needed. This consists mainly of the
City's share of the cost of the Stark County Hed&lgpartment, which provides services to the
citizens of Louisville.

e LEISURE TIME ACTIVITIES - To provide park areas fauctivities that are varied, safe, and
enjoyable for individuals, groups and families.

vi



¢ COMMUNITY ENVIRONMENT- To provide a satisfactoryiing environment for the citizenry,
including decent housing and pleasant surroundihgs are conducive to personal and family
well-being. This program includes Planning, Zonamgl Building Inspection.

e BASIC UTILITY SERVICES - To provide the citizenryith utility services at an affordable
price that also assures necessary supply. THisdes water and sewage treatment.

e TRANSPORTATION - To purchase, construct, maintaid aepair facilities and equipment
needed to transport people, goods, and supplieklgusafely and pleasurably. This includes the
Maintenance Division for streets and highways.

e GENERAL GOVERNMENT - To provide general adminisivat services to ensure that the
aforementioned programs are administered in a nmmanamsistent with, and in the best interest of,
the citizenry. This includes City Manager, Fingncaw, Personnel, Mayor’'s Court, and City
Council.

The Budget as a Policy Document

The budget is a policy document that sets sergeel$ for the City. The goal is to provide the &l
with a management tool to establish broad goals amectives within which the administration will
operate. That is, emphasis should not necesdagilplaced entirely upon the expenditure limitation
aspect of budgeting; rather, expenditure controlkhbe exercised administratively in conjunctioithw
policy decisions. Just as citizens evaluate tliece¥eness of government on the basis of delivered
services, the intent of the budget preparationgs®as to focus policy attention upon the meansesad

to achieve the desired goals of government.

Controlling Expenditures

While the adopted budget establishes appropriatievels, specific procedures for controlling
expenditures continue to be developed, expandetiyefimed to ensure that day-to-day execution is in
compliance with the approved program. The City &tar, in conjunction with the Director of Finance,
is responsible for reviewing all requests for exgitmes initiated by designated requisitioning awities

to determine their compliance with the adopted letidgThe City designs its budget of
expenditures/expenses based on the collaborafimesedf the City’'s management and department heads
The budget/appropriation is at the fund/departrobjgct (personal services/other expenses). Thedbudg
is then presented to Council for approval in thgislative process. Prior to submitting the budiget
Council, the Director of Finance determines if theources are available or anticipated to be delliec
during the year. This estimated revenue must benited to the County Auditor for certification tha
sufficient resources are available to cover appatipns, and upon this certification the appropoiat
measure is then in effect.

These budget control procedures are important neameigt tools which allow more effective use of the
dollars spent in the total City program. As a neaeg by-product, these procedures also ensure
compliance with State and Federal financial statu@ty Council and administration policy, and Digy
Charter.
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Internal Control Structure

Management of the City is responsible for estabigland maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that all assets of the govertnanerprotected from loss, theft, or misuse anehtsure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to aftowthe preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting piptes. The internal control structure is designed t
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurantehibse objectives are met. The concept of reddena
assurance recognizes that the cost of control dhmatl exceed the benefits likely to be derived dnad
the valuation of costs and benefits requires eséisnand judgments by management.

Enterprise Operations

The City owns and operates both a water and setifigy department. Combined operating revenue for
2010 was $1,886,634 an increase of 6.5% from 20Q%sating revenue. Operating expenses increased
14.8% from 2009, to a total of $2,179,189.

Economic Conditions

The information presented in the financial stateimés perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific emriment within which the City operates.

L ocal Economy

Louisville was not immune to the downturn in thdio@al economy that took place over the last half o

2008, 2009, and 2010. The City continued to closgyitor the two main revenue sources being income
taxes and property taxes. The City’'s managemensiders both of these revenues indicators of the
strengths or weaknesses of the local economy. Initorong property tax revenues, the City takes in

account several factors, including tax collectioti®e values of new construction and revaluations.
Likewise with income tax, the City must take intccaunt certain factors such as, tax collections, ta

refunds, new jobs and the unemployment rate.

Income Tax Collections 2001 - 201Dhe economic recovery from the recession thatestan 2001 has
been very sluggish. The City’s financial conditfomally turned around in 2006 after six years afiget
reductions. This can be seen clearly with the '€ilgcome tax collections. Income tax is the Gy’
largest revenue source.

Income Tax Collections
(Presented on a Cash Basis)

Y ear Collections

2001 $ 2,796,610
2002 2757672 | $4,000,000
2003 2842964 | S $3000,000 | ggu—t—t—"
o

o S $1,000,000
200¢ 333279 | = N
2001 3,463,64! P I O PFL P SO
200¢ 3,458,40 P A TR T PP
200¢ 3,221,41! Year
201¢ 3,296,91.
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The City has experienced a local economic slowdsiwee 2001. Income tax collections declined for two
years starting in 2001. In 2003 the City saw a 3idéftease and continued to increase into 2005 nheco
tax collections at the end of 2005 were 0.2% abitrec2004 level. The 2005 and 2006 increases in
income tax revenue were mainly attributed to th& 3@duction of the tax credit allowance on income
earned outside the City and respective taxes paghdther municipality. Effective January 1, 200&
income tax credit allowance was changed to 60%s Vbiatility has resulted in close monitoring of
income tax collections.

The History of Property Tax Collectionfhe second largest source of revenue to thedZitypuisville is
property tax. Louisville is a growing communitydaproperty tax revenue has grown under Ohio Law
since the City levies 2.8 inside (unvoted) tax snilHowever, the increase in property tax revesuwt
large enough to offset the sluggish growth of inediax revenue. That fact becomes clearer when the
figures below are reviewed.

Property Tax Revenue
(Presented on aCash Basi9)
Percentage
Inaease
Year Coallections (Decrease)
2001 $ 381,050 1310 %
2002 379,486 (041)
2003 378,806 (0.18)
2004 375,616 (0.84)
2005 404,521 7.70
2006 413,019 2.10
2007 * 449,811 891
2008 445,017 (1.07)
2009 437,592 (1.67)
2010 423,913 (3.13)

* Increase due to revaluation in prior year.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The residential growth that the City is experiegomas predicted several years ago. As part o1998
goal-setting process, City Council decided to takeloser look at the way the City was developing to
ensure a wise use of capital resources and to ealsamnvice delivery for the future needs of itizeits.
The City selected Northstar Planning and Desigrorporated to guide the City in this community
planning process. In 2000, after months of harckviay many dedicated City and community members,
the Louisville Community Plan was completed and approved by City Council agaesjic approach to
growth management and capital project planning.is Tocument guides City Management through
decisions when formulating future budgets and a®181g possible capital improvements. The Director
of Finance, City Manager and other management ef @ity work closely with local businesses,
developers and other employers to be informed ahgas in the local economy. As a result, the City
adjusts the financial forecasts as a tool to bagiree in managing the City.

Financial Policy

The City’s Charter was designed several years agb & mechanism that facilitated constructive
budgeting policy. As a part of the budget proctss,City Manager is required to present a stat¢mien
approved, pending and proposed capital projed®otocil for the current budget year.



Major Initiatives

During 2010, continuing efforts were made to upgradrvices and improve the quality of life for the
citizens of the City. The City has continued upigng the wastewater treatment plant, and design of
reconstruction of State Route 153, in cooperatidth ihe Army Corps of Engineers and Ohio
Department of Transportation. Another major prgjedhich began in 2010, is the planning and pre-
design phase of the Jobs-Ready Sites Project,dperation with private business and Ohio Department
of Development to develop future manufacturingssite

Risk M anagement

The types of insurance carried include: generdlilitg, public officials liability, police professinal
liability, fleet liability, paramedic liability, eployee medical insurance, and State of Ohio Workers
Compensation. In addition to the City’s administ& policies concerning risk control, each major
department has its own risk control policies angcpdures which are designed to control exposures to
risk by employees and citizens.

Financial Reporting

The City has prepared financial statements follgwiBASB Statement No. 34 “Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Asalyfor State and Local Governments”. GASB
Statement No. 34 creates basic financial statenfentseporting on the City’s financial activities a
follows:

e Government-wide Financial Statements

e Fund Financial Statements

e Statements of Budgetary Comparisons
As part of this model, management is responsibig@feparing a Management’'s Discussion and Analysis
of the City. This discussion follows the Indepemidé&ccountants’ Report, providing an assessmethaf
City’s finances for 2010 and a discussion of curiesues affecting the City.

Independent Annual Audit

The City is not legally required to obtain an indegent annual audit. The minimum requirement tis fo
the State of Ohio to perform an audit, directhirairectly through an independent auditing firmJesst
every two years. The City, consistent with thef@gsional manner in which it has conducted itsrfaial
affairs, has chosen and funded annual audits. Cityés financial statements have been audited by an
independent accounting firm. The goal of the irfefent audit is to provide reasonable assurante tha
the financial statements of the City for the yeaderl December 31, 2010, are free of material
misstatement.



The independent audit involves examining, on a tesis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; asseshm@ccounting principles used and significantesstes
made by management; and evaluating the overalhdiahstatement presentation. Alger & Associates,
Inc., Certified Public Accountants, concluded, lsagpon their audit, that there was a reasonables f@s
rendering an unqualified opinion that the City'sdincial statements for the year ended December 31,
2010 are fairly presented in conformity with GAARhe Independent Auditor's Report is presented as
the first component of the financial section obthéport.

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of thdted States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in FinehdReporting to the City of Louisville, Ohio fotsi
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the figear ended December 31, 2009. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award reaiggi conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government finarreijpbrts.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievemargovernmental unit must publish an easily reledab
and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Raial Report (CAFR) whose contents conform to
program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both @#lgeAccepted Accounting Principles and
applicable legal requirements. A Certificate ofhevement is valid for a period of one year onleT
City of Louisville has received a Certificate of ievement for seventeen years. We believe oueotrr
report continues to conform to the Certificate ofhfevement Program requirements, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA for award consideration.
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ALGER & ASSOCIATES, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS” REPORT

City of Louisville
215 S. Mill Street
Louisville, OH 44641

To the Members of Council:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented
component unit of the City of Louisville (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the
United States” Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, the
aggregate remaining fund information and the discretely presented component unit of the City as of
December 31, 2010 , and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Street Construction, Maintenance
and Repair Fund for the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires. We have applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measuring and presenting the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

6927 Burgundy Ave. N.W. 542 Ablemarle Circle
North Canton, OH 44720 Delaware, OH 43015
(330) 350-2553 - 1- (740) 816-2961



City of Louisville

Stark County

Independent Accountants” Report
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 17, 2011 on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grants agreements and other matters. While we
did not opine on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance that report describes the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be read in conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund statements, individual budgetary schedules and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and individual budgetary schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Ga ry L Digitally signed by Gary L. Alger,
.

CPA, CFE, CGFM
DN: cn=Gary L. Alger, CPA, CFE,

A I g er, C PA’ CGFM, o=Alger & Associates, LLC,

ou, email=galger@neo.rr.com,

c=Us
CFE, CG FM Date: 2011.07.13 21:11:21 -04'00'

Alger & Associates, LLC
June 17, 2011



City of Louisville, Ohio

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010
Unaudited

The management’s discussion and analysis of thg @itLouisville’s (the “City”) financial
statements provides an overall review of the Cifiiancial activities for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010. The intent of this discussimh analysis is to look at the City’s financial
performance as a whole. Readers should also rethewtransmittal letter, basic financial
statements and notes to enhance their understaofiihg City’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2010 are as follows:

» The total net assets of the City increased $15841 Net assets of governmental
activities increased $1,113,855, which representsl&2% increase over fiscal year
2009. Net assets of business-type activities asze $657,679 or 7.2% from fiscal year
20009.

» General revenues, for governmental activitiesoanted for $3,609,964 or 68.1% of
total governmental activities revenue. Program cifjge revenues accounted for
$1,690,231 or 31.9% of total governmental actigitievenue.

» The City had $4,186,340 in expenses related t@mwonental activities; $1,690,231 of
these expenses was offset by program specific ebdag services and sales, operating
grants, contributions and interest and capital tgrand contributions. General revenues
(primarily taxes) of $3,609,964 were sufficient ¢dfset these remaining program
expenses.

* The general fund, the City's largest and majoveygomental fund, had revenues of
$3,739,249 in 2010, or 68.2% of total governmefuatls. Expenditures of the general
fund were $3,123,746, or 61.4% of total governnieintads. The general fund balance
increased $166,243 or 10.3% in 2010.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (BFR)

This annual report consists of a series of findngfatements and notes to those statements.
These statements are prepared and organized seaither can understand the City as a financial
whole, an entire operating entity. The statem#ra proceed to provide an increasingly detailed
look at specific financial activities.

The statement of net assets and statement of teiyarovide summary information about the
activities of the whole City, presenting both arg@gate view of the City’s finances and a
longer-term view of those finances.

Fund financial statements provide the next leveldefail. For governmental funds, these
statements show how services were financed inhba-germ as well as what remains for future
spending. The fund financial statements also labthe City’'s most significant funds with all

other nonmajor governmental funds presented i iotane column. In the case of the City,
there are two major governmental funds and two nmajsiness-type funds.
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Reporting the City as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities

While this document contains a number of funds usgdhe City to provide programs and
activities, the view of the City as a whole looksadl financial transactions and answers the
guestion, “How did we do financially during 2010"These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accountiimgikr to the accounting method used by most
private-sector companies. This basis of accourtahkgs into account all of the current year’s
revenues and expenses regardless of when casteiga or paid. These two statements report
the City’s net assets and changes in those asBkis.change in net assets is important because it
tells the reader that, for the City as a whole, fthancial position of the City has improved or
diminished. The causes of this change may bedhatrof many factors, some financial, some
not. Non-financial factors include the City's pesty tax base, current property tax laws in Ohio
restricting revenue growth, facility conditions aottier factors.

In the statement of net assets and the statemexttigities, the City is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s pragns and services are reported here
including general government, security of persond groperty, transportation and
community environment.  These services are fundeunapily by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues including federal aategjrants and other shared revenues.

* Business-Type Activities — These services arevigeal on a fee-for-usage basis to
recover all or a significant portion of the expenseéthe goods or services provided. The
City's business-type activities include water, seamd storm water services.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that isduo maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objestiv The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure anadrdgrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the Cigndbe divided into two categories: governmental
funds and proprietary funds. Fund financial repgstovide detailed information about the
activities within the City’'s major funds. The Citxses many funds to account for a multitude of
financial transactions. However, these fund fim@nstatements focus on the City’'s most
significant funds. The City’'s major governmentaindis are the general fund and street
construction, maintenance and repair special revdond. An analysis of the City’'s major
governmental fund begins on page 10.
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Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for esdlgntiae same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide ficial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmefuad financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resourcesyell as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Suchrimttion may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds isonamr than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare thferiation presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmerdativities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better uiaghekshe long-term impact of the government’s
near-term financing decisions. Both the governwleiuind balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and elsaingfund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmefutadls and governmental activities.

The City maintains seventeen individual governmidntads. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in thergmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances fomidger funds, which were identified earlier.
Data from the other nonmajor governmental funds @mbined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each ostheonmajor governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements, which can be fban pages 62-66 in this report. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be fammgages 18-23 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds (water and sewer) have histdyicglerated as enterprise funds and are used to
report the same functions presented as businessagyfprities in the government-wide financial
statements. Since they use the same basis of rowpuas business-type activities, these fund
statements will essentially match the informatioovided in statements for the City as a whole.
The basic proprietary fund financial statementslm&afound on pages 24-26 of this report.

Notesto the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that isesgtial to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund finangthtements. These notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on pages 27-&iofeport.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements aoccompanying notes, this report also presents

combining and individual fund statements and sclesgdwvhich can be found on pages 67-87 of
this report.
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The statement of net assets provides the perspaitihe City as a whole.

Table 1 below provides a summary of the City’sassets for 2010 compared to 2009:

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Assets
Current and

other assets $ 3,859,669 $ 3,969,266 $ 1,977,792$ 1,978591$ 5837,461$% 5,947,857
Capital assets 4,492,952 3,610,278 10,814,353 10,554,639 15,307,305 14,164,917
Total asse 8,352,62. 7,579,54. 12,792,14 12,533,23 21,144,76 20,112,77
Liabilities

Other liabilities 674,382 886,751 114,745 191,864 789,127 1,078,615
Long-term liabilities

outstanding 458,095 586,504 2,897,063 3,218,708 3,355,158 3,805,212
Total liabilities 1,132,47 1,473,25! 3,011,80: 3,410,57. 4,144,28! 4,883,82
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 4,238,952 3,251,988 8,083,638 7,415,753 12,322,590 10,667,741
Restricted 916,049 1,011,949 - - 916,049 1,011,949
Unrestricted 2,065,143 1,842,352 1,696,699 1,706,905 3,761,842 3,549,257
Total net assets $ 7,220,144 $ 6,106,289 $ 9,780,337 $ 9,122,658 $ 17,000,481 $ 15,228,947

Over time, net assets can serve as a useful indichta government’s financial position. At
December 31, 2010, the City’s assets exceededitiebiby $17,000,481. This amounts to
$7,220,144 in governmental activities and $9,78Dj&Jusiness-type activities.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets 72rBflects its investment in capital assets less any
related debt used to acquire those assets. Cagstats include land, land improvements,
buildings, machinery, equipment and vehicles, Btftacture, and construction in progress.
Capital assets, net of related debt to acquiragisets at December 31, 2010, were $12,322,590.
These capital assets are used to provide serviceitizens and are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in calp#asets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources to repay thendest be provided from other sources, since
capital assets may not be used to liquidate thaisiities.
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As of December 31, 2010, the City is able to repoditive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, asawdtr its separate governmental and business-
type activities.

A portion of the City’s governmental net assetsl&049 or 12.7%, represent resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they maysed. Of total restricted net assets $129,975 is
restricted for capital projects, $15,452 for dedvice, $511,502 for transportation, $233,503 for
safety services programs and $25,617 for other gs@p The remaining balance of
governmental unrestricted net assets of $2,065rh48 be used to meet the government’'s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Table 2 below shows the changes in net assetsof@rgmental and business-type activities for
fiscal years 2010 and 20089.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 599836 $ 648,459 % 1,876,302% 1,771,676 $ 2,476,138 $ 2,420,135
Operating grants, contributions,
and interest 684,907 551,468 385,583 - 1,070,490 551,468
Capital grants and contributions 405,488 206,169 - 92,696 405,488 298,865
General revenues:
Property and other taxes 496,221 409,330 - - 496,221 409,330
Municipal income taxes 2,497,694 2,366,926 832,564 850,319 3,330,258 3,217,245
Grants and entitlements 363,559 576,332 - 73,970 363,559 650,302
Investment earnings 2,967 3,465 - - 2,967 3,465
Other 136,573 130,514 10,332 - 146,905 130,514
Total revenues 5,187,245 4,892,663 3,104,781 2,788,661 8,292,026 7,681,324
(Continued)
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Table 2
Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Program Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government 891,233 907,759 - - 891,233 907,759
Security of persons and property 2,183,465 2,086,776 - - 2,183,465 2,086,776
Public health and welfare 50,860 77,436 - - 50,860 77,436
Transportation 681,247 512,414 - - 681,247 512,414
Community environment 147,504 204,539 - - 147,504 204,539
Leisure time activiites 214,946 377,890 - - 214,946 377,890
Interest and fiscal charges 17,085 21,268 - - 17,085 21,268
Business-Type Activities:

Water - - 1,199,786 1,020,190 1,199,786 1,020,190

Sewer - - 1,074,184 1,059,981 1,074,184 1,059,981

Storm sewer - - 60,182 - 60,182 -
Total program expenses 4,186,340 4,188,082 2,334,152 2,080,171 6,520,492 6,268,253
Change in net assets

before transfers 1,000,905 704,581 770,629 708,490 1,771,534 1,413,071
Transfers 112,950 153,228 (112,950) (153,228) - -
Change in net assets $ 1,113855 $ 857,809 $ 657,679 $ 555,262 $ 1,771,534 $ 1,413,071

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities net assets increased $B%%3or 18.2% in 2010 over 2009. This
increase was due to continued conservative spermdawsures. The City’s funding for these
governmental activities comes from a variety of rees, the most significant being the
$2,497,694 of municipal income tax. See Note 12 fiother information on income tax

revenues.

Intergovernmental revenue (i.e. state shared st)pmresents a large source of general revenue
in unrestricted

for governmental activities. In 2010, the City emed $363,559
intergovernmental revenues or 6.9% of total revenue
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Program restricted charges for services and opgrand capital grants, contributions and

interest represent monies the City is awardedateatequired to be used for specific purposes. In
2010, the City received $599,836 in charges forises, a combined total of $684,907 in various

operating grants, contributions and interest ar@b$B8 in capital grants and contributions.

The City’s governmental activity expenses totalddl$6,340 in 2010, with security of persons

and property, general government and transportagipresenting the largest portion of this figure

at 89.7%. The City’s governmental activity expendecreased by $1,742 from 2009, not related
to any one single event.

Security of persons and property, which primariports the operations of the City’s police,
fire and emergency medical services, accounts 20t88,465 of expenses, or 52.2% of total
governmental expenses of the City. These expemsesfunded by $433,377 in charges to users
of services and operating grants. General govemhregpenses, which primarily include
legislative, executive and financial managemenéaléd $891,233 or 21.3% of total governmental
expenses. General government expenses were cdueb1,321 of direct charges to users and
operating grants.

At $681,247 or 16.3%, transportation representsihgs third largest category of governmental
activity expenses. This category of governmentgleases supports the operations of the
maintenance division for street and highway ac¢ésit These expenses were funded by $969,771
in direct charges to users, operating and capitaitg.

Business-Type Activities

The water, sewer and storm water funds represenCity’s business-type activities. These
programs had program revenues of $2,261,885 aneherp of $2,334,152 for fiscal year 2010.
Business-type activities reported an increase trassets of $657,679, or 7.2% as compared to
2009. For this year, the increase in net assetsattabuted to an increase in certain user feds an
operating grants.

Program Expenses

The statement of activities shows the cost of @wgservices and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services. Table 3 shoarsgévernment-wide activities, the total cost of
services and the net cost of services for 201020@9. That is, it identifies the cost of these
services supported by general revenues.
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Table 3
Program Expenses

2010 2009 Net Change
Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Clest
of Services  of Services  of Services  of Services  of Services  of Services
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 891,233 $ (639,912)$ 907,759 $ (697,669)$  (16,526) $ 57,757
Security of persons and property 2,183,465 (1,750,088) 2,086,776 (1,719,435) 96,689 (30,653)
Public health and welfare 50,860 (50,860) 77,436 (77,436) (26,576) 26,576
Transportation 681,247 288,524 512,414 105,811 168,833 182,713
Community environment 147,504 (142,969) 204,539 (78,562) (57,035) (64,407)
Leisure time activities 214,946 (183,719) 377,890 (293,427) (162,944) 109,708
Interest and fiscal charges 17,085 (17,085) 21,268 (21,268) (4,183) 4,183
Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,199,786 (318,455) 1,020,190 (223,145) 179,596 (95,310)
Sewer 1,074,184 175,525 1,059,981 7,346 14,203 168,179
Storm sewer 60,182 70,663 - 60,182 70,663
Total expenses $ 6,520,49% (2,568,376)$% 6,268,253 $ (2,997,785)$ 252,239 $ 429,409

The dependence upon general revenues for goverahemsiivities is apparent, with 59.6% of
expenses supported through taxes and other gepeesiues.

Financial Analysis of the Government’'s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accountingebsure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. The general fa the main governmental operating fund of
the City. At the end of 2010, the fund balanceth& general fund was $1,783,283, a 10.3%
increase from the prior year. The reason for ti@eiase in the general fund balance was

primarily due to a decrease in expenses.

At thee &n2010, the fund balance of the street

construction, maintenance and repair fund was 8569,a 658.7% increase from the prior year.
The reason for the increase in the street congtryatnaintenance and repair fund balance was
primarily due to an increase in intergovernmeng@enues used for the city's street construction

projects

10
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Table 4 below reports year 2010 balances compar2dG9:

Table 4
Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance

December 31, December 31, Increase Percent
2010 2009 (Decrease) Change
General $ 1,783283 $ 1,617,040 $ 166,243 10.3%
Street Construction,
Maintenance and Repair 269,356 35,504 233,852 658.7%
Other Governmental Funds 535,474 538,893 (3,419) -0.6%

$ 2588113 $ 2191437 $ 396,676

Table 5 below assists in illustrating the changefiniancial activities for the general fund for yea
2010 balances compared to 2009:

Table 5
Change in Financial Activities for the General Fund

December 31, December 31, Increase Percent
2010 2009 (Decrease) Change
Revenues:
Income tax $ 2,491,850 $ 2,411,065 $ 80,785 3.4%
Property and other taxes 467,592 405,380 62,212 15.3%
Charges for services 235,554 252,025 (16,471) -6.5%
Licenses and permits 95,826 114,544 (18,718) -16.3%
Fines and forfeitures 3,699 2,710 989 36.5%
Intergovernmental 366,425 573,044 (206,619) -36.1%
Investment income 2,967 17,164 (14,197) -82.7%
Contributions and donations 8,321 12,920 (4,599) -35.6%
Rentals 11,307 24,193 (12,886) -53.3%
Other 55,708 42,705 13,003 30.4%
Total revenue $ 3,739,249 $ 3,855,750 $ (116,501)
Expenditures:
Current:

General government $ 847,125 $ 883,666 $ (36,541) -4.1%
Security of persons and property 1,758,457 1,735,155 23,302 1.3%
Public health and welfare 50,860 77,436 (26,576) -34.3%
Community environment 151,145 211,481 (60,336) -28.5%
Leisure time activities 149,882 311,834 (161,952) -51.9%
Capital outlay 135,426 53,410 82,016 153.6%

Debt service:
Principal retirement 29,761 28,711 1,050 3.7%
Interest and fiscal charges 1,090 2,140 (1,050) -49.1%
Total expenditures $ 3,123,746 $ 3,303,833 $ (180,087)

11
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Budgeting Highlights - General Fund

The City’s budgeting process is prescribed by thio®Revised Code (ORC) and the provisions
of the City’'s Charter. Essentially the budgethis €City’s appropriations that are restricted by the
amounts of anticipated revenues certified by tharBoBudget Commission in accordance with

the ORC. Therefore, the City’s plans or desiremoabe totally reflected in the original budget.

If budgeted revenues are adjusted due to actuiaitacthen the appropriations can be adjusted
accordingly.

There most significant changes from the originalldeied revenues as compared to the final
budgeted amounts was an increase of $68,009 irgowernmental revenue. This difference was
caused by the intergovernmental revenues beingawkrat the original budgeting process.
Actual revenues were greater than the final budgateount by $4,339 mainly due to an increase
in intergovernmental revenue received during tre.ye

Final budgeted expenditures were less than thénatigudgeted expenditures by $179,224. This
was due to an overall decrease in expendituresadtie local economy. Actual expenditures of
$3,238,367 for the year were $35,947 less thanb$a74,314 final budgeted amounts. The
majority of this change was reported in securitypefsons and property and general government
due to conservative spending.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of 2010, the City had $15,307,305 (retocumulated depreciation) invested in land,
land improvements, buildings, machinery, equipmemd vehicles, infrastructure, and
construction in progress. Of this total, $4,492,98s reported in governmental activities and
$10,814,353 was reported in business-type activiti#able 6 below reports fiscal year 2010
balances compared to 2009:

Table 6
Capital Assets, at December 31
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 197,763 $ 197,763 $ 312,987 $ 312,987 $ 510,750 $ 510,750
Land improvements 383,501 387,379 57,548 34,763 441,049 422,142
Buildings and

building improvements 754,345 760,058 4,786,490 4,963,329 5,540,835 5,723,387
Machinery, equipment

and vehicles 1,118,763 1,069,062 385,465 279,430 1,504,228 1,348,492
Infrastructure 293,273 320,321 4,615,876 4,779,776 4,909,149 5,100,097
Construction in progress 1,745,307 875,695 655,987 184,354 2,401,294 1,060,049
Total $ 4,492,952 $ 3,610,278 $ 10,814,353 $ 10,554,639 $ 15,307,305 $ 14,164,917
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010
Unaudited

The most significant change during 2010 to the arh@i net capital assets was due to an
increase of $1,341,245 in construction in progreBsr governmental activities an increase of
$896,612 in construction in progress was due tdimoimg construction projects. See Note 7 to
the basic financial statements for detail on theegomental and business-type activities capital
assets.

Debt Administration

At December 31, 2010 the City had total long-teebtdbutstanding of $3,079,484. Of this total,
$592,911 is due within one year and $2,486,578i¢sid more than one year.

Table 7
Outstanding Debt, at December 31

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
General obligation bonds $ 254,006 279,000 $ 2,122,030 $ 2,494,636 $ 2,376,030 $ 2,773,636

OPWC loans 433,296 481,588 433,296 481,588
OWDA loan - - 45,013 47,270 45,013 47,270
Capital leases - 79,290 225,145 115,392 225,145 194,682
Total $ 254,000 $ 358,290 $ 2,825484 $ 3,138,886 $ 3,079,484 $ 3,497,176

In addition to the outstanding debt listed abole, €ity has other long-term obligations. These
other obligations include police pension obligasidnom past service costs in the amount of
$43,094.

All governmental long-term debt will be repaid thetdebt retirement debt service fund. The
Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans will lepaid by the water enterprise fund. The
business-type general obligation bonds will be i¢fil@mm both the water and sewer enterprise
funds. The Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDRjIl be repaid from the water
enterprise fund.

At December 31, 2010 the City's overall legal defatrgin was $16,183,052, with an unvoted
debt margin of $8,476,837. The City’s credit rgtremained unchanged in 2010 as compared to
2009. See Note 9 to the basic financial statenfentdetails on the City’s long-term obligations.

Current Issues Affecting Financial Condition
The City of Louisville is strong financially. Inddition, the City of Louisville’s systems of
budgeting and internal controls are well regarded the City is well prepared to meet the

challenges of the future. In conclusion, managerhastbeen committed to provide the residents
of the City of Louisville with full disclosure ohe financial position of the City.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010
Unaudited

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide oudizeins, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to destmte the City’'s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions abous tt@port or need additional financial
information, contact Jina Alaback Lingle, City oblisville Finance Director, 215 South Mill
Street, Louisville, Ohio 44641, (330) 875-3434yisit our web site at www.louisvilleohio.com.
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2010

Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:
Income tax
Property and other taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments
Materias and supplies inventory
Prepaid items
Deferred charges
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Compensated absences payable
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Undistributed monies
Income tax refunds payable
Accrued interest payable
Claims payable
Long-term liahilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt, where applicable
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Transportation
Safety services
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Primary Government

Component Unit

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Tota LCIC
$ 2,011,211 1,358,705 $ 3,369,916 58,294
742,154 247,384 989,538 -
549,448 - 549,448 -
88,241 352,075 440,316 -
452,633 5,980 458,613 -
11,620 6,837 18,457 -
4,362 813 5,175 366
- 5,998 5,998 -
1,943,070 968,974 2,912,044 30,994
2,549,882 9,845,379 12,395,261 -
8,352,621 12,792,145 21,144,766 89,654
56,885 28,427 85,312 -
25,761 902 26,663 -
60,745 22,194 82,939 -
1,479 126 1,605 -
95,651 39,705 135,356 -
394,480 - 394,480 -
1,965 - 1,965 -
35,224 11,741 46,965 -
1,066 11,650 12,716 -
1,126 - 1,126 -
111,461 607,188 718,649 -
346,634 2,289,875 2,636,509 -
1,132,477 3,011,808 4,144,285 -
4,238,952 8,083,638 12,322,590 30,994
129,975 - 129,975 -
15,452 - 15,452 -
511,502 - 511,502 -
233,503 - 233,503 -
25,617 - 25,617 -
2,065,143 1,696,699 3,761,842 58,660
$ 7,220,144 9,780,337 $ 17,000,481 89,654
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Program Revenues

Operating Grants,

Chargesfor Contributions Capital Grants

Expenses Services and Sales and Interest and Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 891,233 $ 234,515 $ 16,806 $ -
Security of persons and property 2,183,465 329,559 103,818 -
Public health and welfare 50,860 - - -
Transportation 681,247 - 564,283 405,488
Community environment 147,504 4,535 - -
Leisure time activities 214,946 31,227 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 17,085 - - -
Total governmental activities 4,186,340 599,836 684,907 405,488
Business-Type Activities.
Water 1,199,786 863,578 17,753 -
Sewer 1,074,184 882,329 367,380 -
Storm water 60,182 130,395 450 -
Total business-type activities 2,334,152 1,876,302 385,583 -
Total primary government $ 6,520,492 $ 2,476,138 $ 1,070,490 $ 405,488
Component Unit:
LCIC $ 1,125 $ - $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

General revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes
Income tax levied for:
General purposes
Water utility services
Sewer utility services
Grants and entitlements not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings
Other
Transfers

Total genera revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year
Net assets, end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changesin Net Assets

Primary Government Component Unit
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total LCIC
$ (639,912) $ - $ (639,912) $ -
(1,750,088) - (1,750,088) -
(50,860) - (50,860) -
288,524 - 288,524 -
(142,969) - (142,969) -
(183,719) - (183,719) -
(17,085) - (17,085) -
(2,496,109) - (2,496,109) -
- (318,455) (318,455) -
- 175,525 175,525 -
- 70,663 70,663 -
- (72,267) (72,267) -
(2,496,109) (72,267) (2,568,376) -
] - - (1,125)
496,221 - 496,221 -
2,497,694 - 2,497,694 -
- 262,921 262,921 -
- 569,643 569,643 -
363,559 - 363,559 -
2,967 - 2,967 55
136,573 10,332 146,905 -
112,950 (112,950) - -
3,609,964 729,946 4,339,910 55
1,113,855 657,679 1,771,534 (1,070)
6,106,289 9,122,658 15,228,947 90,724
$ 7,220,144 $ 9,780,337 $ 17,000,481 $ 89,654
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2010

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash

and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Income tax

Property and other taxes

Accounts

Interfund
Due from other governments
Materias and supplies inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Interfund payable

Accrued wages and benefits
Compensated absences payable
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue
Undistributed monies

Income tax refunds payable
Claims and judgments payable

Totdl lisbilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for inventory
Reserved for prepaid items
Unreserved, undesignated,
Reported in:
Genera fund
Specia revenue funds
Debt service fund
Capital projectsfund

Tota fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Street
Construction, Other Total
Maintenance Governmental Governmental
General and Repair Funds Funds
1,380,414 $ 138,475 $ 492,322 $ 2,011,211
742,154 - - 742,154
549,448 - - 549,448
- 1,645 86,596 88,241
21,374 - - 21,374
152,924 256,559 43,150 452,633
- 11,620 - 11,620
3,678 633 51 4,362
2,849,992 $ 408,932 $ 622,119 $ 3,881,043
45,972 $ 6,748 $ 4,165 $ 56,885
- 7,860 17,901 25,761
- - 21,374 21,374
47,963 7,435 5,347 60,745
1,479 - - 1,479
78,675 11,472 5,504 95,651
854,305 106,061 32,354 992,720
1,965 - - 1,965
35,224 - - 35,224
1,126 - - 1,126
1,066,709 139,576 86,645 1,292,930
28,886 18,963 91,235 139,084
- 11,620 - 11,620
3,678 633 51 4,362
1,750,719 - - 1,750,719
- 238,140 388,540 626,680
- - 16,518 16,518
- - 39,130 39,130
1,783,283 269,356 535,474 2,588,113
2,849,992 $ 408,932 $ 622,119 $ 3,881,043

18



City of Louisville, Ohio

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balancesto
Net Assetsof Governmental Activities

December 31, 2010

Tota governmental fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Property and other taxes $ 52,528

Income taxes 330,772

Intergovernmental 191,319

Charges for services 23,621
Totd

Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current
period and therefore is not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Genera obligation bonds $ (254,000)

Compensated absences (161,001)

Police pension liability (43,094)
Total

Net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Street
Construction, Other Total
Maintenance Governmental Governmental
General and Repair Funds Funds
Revenues:
Income tax $ 2,491,850 $ - $ - $ 2,491,850
Property and other taxes 467,592 - - 467,592
Charges for services 235,554 - 323,175 558,729
Licenses and permits 95,826 - 23,490 119,316
Fines and forfeitures 3,699 - 14,529 18,228
Intergovernmental 366,425 1,034,640 320,161 1,721,226
Investment income 2,967 - 517 3,484
Contributions and donations 8,321 - 6,035 14,356
Rentals 11,307 - - 11,307
Other 55,708 14,496 4,949 75,153
Tota revenue 3,739,249 1,049,136 692,856 5,481,241
Expenditures:
Current:
Genera government 847,125 - - 847,125
Security of persons and property 1,758,457 - 296,815 2,055,272
Public health and welfare 50,860 - - 50,860
Transportation - 445,135 165,071 610,206
Community environment 151,145 - - 151,145
Leisure time activities 149,882 - - 149,882
Capital outlay 135,426 704,999 258,183 1,098,608
Debt service:
Principal retirement 29,761 - 74,529 104,290
Interest and fiscal charges 1,090 - 16,087 17,177
Total expenditures 3,123,746 1,150,134 810,685 5,084,565
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 615,503 (100,998) (117,829) 396,676
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers- in - 334,850 114,410 449,260
Transfers - out (449,260) - - (449,260)
Tota other financing sources (uses) (449,260) 334,850 114,410 -
Net changein fund balance 166,243 233,852 (3,419) 396,676
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,617,040 35,504 538,893 2,191,437
Fund balances at end of year $ 1,783,283 $ 269,356 $ 535,474 $ 2,588,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Gover nmental Fundsto the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net change in fund balances - Total governmenta funds

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of capital assetsis allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 1,098,608
Capital assetstransferred 112,950
Depreciation expense (290,813)

Excess of capital outlay and capital contributions over depreciation expense

Governmental funds only report the disposal of capital assetsto the extent proceeds are received

fromthe sale. In the statement of activities, again or loss is reported for each disposal.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenuesin the funds. These activities consist of:

Property and other taxes $ 28,628
Income taxes 5,843
Intergovernmental (300,910)
Charges for services (27,557)

Net change in deferred revenues during the year

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmenta funds. These
activities consist of:

Decrease in compensated absences $ 23,131
Decreasein police pension liability 988
Decrease in accrued interest 92

Total additional expenditures

Repayment of bond and loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilitiesin the statement of net assets.

Some capital additions were financed through capital leases. In governmental funds, a capital
lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the statement of net assets,
the lease obligation is reported as a liability.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:

Municipal income tax
Property and other taxes
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental

Interest

Contributions and donations

Rentals
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Genera government

Security of persons and property
Public health and welfare
Community environment
Leisuretime activities

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets

Advances- in
Advances - out
Transfers-in
Transfers - out

Tota other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund balance at end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Origina Fina Actual (Negative)

$ 2,471,950 $ 2,471,950 $ 2,472,685 $ 735
377,000 377,000 376,972 (28)
235,800 235,800 235,554 (246)
118,595 118,595 118,265 (330)
3,700 3,700 3,699 (@)
375,416 443,425 447,796 4,371
5,700 5,700 5,626 (74)
8,325 8,325 8,321 (4
11,325 11,325 11,307 (18)
48,280 49,940 49,874 (66)
3,656,091 3,725,760 3,730,099 4,339
1,034,654 930,614 918,935 11,679
1,833,195 1,850,855 1,836,173 14,682
77,125 53,675 53,018 657
274,611 179,336 177,888 1,448
204,578 228,983 221,502 7,481
29,375 30,851 30,851 -
3,453,538 3,274,314 3,238,367 35,947
202,553 451,446 491,732 40,286
7,500 7,500 7,491 (9)

- - 251,546 251,546
- - (265,959) (265,959)

30,784 31,867 31,867 -
(554,260) (484,727) (481,127) 3,600
(515,976) (445,360) (456,182) (10,822)
(313,423) 6,086 35,550 29,464
1,222,320 1,222,320 1,222,320 -
54,837 54,837 54,837 -

$ 963,734 $ 1,283,243 $ 1,312,707 $ 29,464
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Origina Fina Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 1,579,725 1,596,100 931,165 (664,935)
Other 8,945 8,945 8,067 (878)
Total revenues 1,588,670 1,605,045 939,232 (665,813)
Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation 1,968,689 1,958,899 1,302,842 656,057
Excess of revenues under expenditures (380,019) (353,854) (363,610) (9,756)
Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets 6,430 6,430 6,429 Q)
Advances- in - - 171,751 171,751
Advances - out - - (171,751) (171,751)
Transfers- in 334,850 334,850 334,850 -
Tota other financing sources (uses) 341,280 341,280 341,279 Q)
Net change in fund balance (38,739) (12,574) (22,331) (9,757)
Fund balance at beginning of year 128,438 128,438 128,438 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 564 564 564 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 90,263 $ 116,428 $ 106,671 $ (9,757)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2010

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Storm Water Total
Assets:
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivaents $ 621,970 $ 620,014 $ 116,721 $ 1,358,705
Receivables:
Income tax 138,535 108,849 - 247,384
Accounts 160,056 172,331 19,688 352,075
Due from other governments - 5,980 - 5,980
Materials and supplies inventory 2,466 4,371 - 6,837
Prepaid items 401 412 - 813
Deferred charges 2,355 3,643 - 5,998
Total current assets 925,783 915,600 136,409 1,977,792
Non-current assets:
Land 213,279 99,708 - 312,987
Construction in progress 93,400 562,587 - 655,987
Depreciable capital assets, net 5,374,229 4,471,150 - 9,845,379
Tota non-current assets 5,680,908 5,133,445 - 10,814,353
Total assets $ 6606691 $ 6,049,045 $ 136,409 $ 12,792,145
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8,662 $ 17,879 $ 1,88 $ 28,427
Contracts payable - 902 - 902
Accrued wages and benefits 9,931 12,263 - 22,194
Compensated absences payable 17,786 22,617 - 40,403
Due to other governments 15,514 23,871 320 39,705
Income tax refunds payable 6,575 5,166 - 11,741
Accrued interest payable 5,329 6,321 - 11,650
Capital lease payable 15,216 81,840 15,216 112,272
OPWC loans payable 48,292 - - 48,292
General obligation bonds payable 118,200 285,800 - 404,000
OWDA loans payable 2,347 - - 2,347
Total current liabilities 247,852 456,659 17,422 721,933
Long-term liahilities:
Compensated absences payable 13,731 17,571 - 31,302
Capital leases payable, net of current portion 32,168 48,536 32,169 112,873
OPWC loans payable, net of current portion 385,004 - - 385,004
OWNDA loans payable, net of current portion 42,666 - - 42,666
General obligation bonds payable, net of current portion 985,269 732,761 - 1,718,030
Tota liabilities 1,706,690 1,255,527 49,591 3,011,808
Net assets.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,099,130 3,984,508 - 8,083,638
Unrestricted 800,871 809,010 86,818 1,696,699
Total net assets $ 4900001 $ 4793518 $ 86,818 $ 9,780,337

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Operating revenues.
Charges for services
Other

Tota operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Fringe benefits
Contractual services
Supplies and materias
Depreciation

Tota operating expenses
Operating income (l0ss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Municipal income tax
Grants
Losson sale of capital assets
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions

Capital contributions

Changein net assets

Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Storm Water Tota
$ 863,578 $ 882,329 $ 130,395 $ 1,876,302
8,603 1,729 - 10,332
872,181 884,058 130,395 1,886,634
260,536 328,569 - 589,105
95,095 112,167 - 207,262
479,456 277,442 41,726 798,624
98,839 75,602 18,385 192,826
202,743 188,629 - 391,372
1,136,669 982,409 60,111 2,179,189
(264,488) (98,351) 70,284 (292,555)
262,921 569,643 - 832,564
17,753 367,380 450 385,583
(64,381) (4,904) (64,382) (133,667)
(63,117) (86,871) (72) (150,059)
153,176 845,248 (64,003) 934,421
(111,312) 746,897 6,281 641,866
- 15,813 - 15,813
(111,312) 762,710 6,281 657,679
5,011,313 4,030,808 80,537 9,122,658
$ 4900001 $ 4793518 $ 86,818 $ 9,780,337
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for employee services and benefits
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided by (used) for operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Income taxes received
Operating grants
Net cash provided by (used for)

noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest paid on debt
Principal payment on bonds, loans and capital lease
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash used for capital and
related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (l0ss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (l0ss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (10ss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation

Changein assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid items

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Compensated absences
Due to other governments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Capital contributions

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Storm Water Total
862,222 $ 905,839 $ 110,707 $ 1,878,768
(359,162) (443,188) - (802,350)
(599,694) (359,658) (120,027) (1,079,379)
(96,634) 102,993 (9,320) (2,961)
267,345 556,883 - 824,228

17,753 361,400 8,298 379,153
285,098 918,283 8,298 1,203,381
(63,194) (73,680) (71) (136,945)

(182,546) (352,153) (16,997) (551,696)
(120,030) (417,313) - (537,343)
(365,770) (843,146) (17,068) (1,225,984)
(177,306) 178,130 (18,090) (17,266)
799,276 441,884 134,811 1,375,971
621,970 $ 620,014 $ 116,721  $ 1,358,705
(264,488) $ (98,351) $ 70,284 $ (292,555)
202,743 188,629 - 391,372
(9,959) 21,781 (19,688) (7,866)
1y (3,838) - (3,849)
(133) (144) - 277)
(21,255) (7,832) 275 (28,812)
- - (55,274) (55,274)
- - (5,237) (5,237)

1,563 1,646 - 3,209
(4,547) (3,570) - (8,117)
(547) 4,672 320 4,445
(96,634) $ 102,993 $ (9,320) $ (2,961)

- % 15813 $ - % 15,813
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Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. City Government and
Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements of the City of Luilis (the “City”) have
been prepared in conformity with generally acceptecbunting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Goreantal Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standatidgebody for
establishing governmental accounting and finanmglorting principles.
The City also applies Financial Accounting StandaBibard Statements
(FASB) and Interpretations issued on or before Muwer 30, 1989, to its
business-type activities and enterprise funds pgexlithey do not conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The FASE lgodified its
standards and the standards issued prior to NoveBGhe 989 are included
in the codification. The City has elected notatldw FASB guidance for
business-type activities and enterprise funds dsaféeer November 30,
1989. The more significant of the City's accouptiolicies are described
below.

The City operates under its Charter and is govelyedn elected Mayor-
Council Member and four other Council Members.

The reporting entity is comprised of the primarywgmment, component
units and other organizations that are includednsure that the financial
statements of the City are fairly presented andptet®. The primary

government consists of all funds, departments, dsand commissions
that are not legally separate from the City. Thiy @rovides municipal

services such as police, fire fighting and prewmntparks and recreation,
and street maintenance. The City also operatetaieenterprise

operations such as a sewage treatment plant anatea weatment plant.
The operations of all of these services are induddhe reporting entity.

Component units are legally separate organizationsvhich the City is
financially accountable. The City is financiallyccmuntable for an
organization if the City appoints a voting majoriy the organization's
governing board and (1) the City is able to siguaifitly influence the
programs or services performed or provided by tigamization; or (2) the
City is legally entitled to or can otherwise accdbg organization's
resources; the City is legally obligated or hasenilise assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of, or prdeifinancial support to, the
organization; or the City is obligated for the deadftthe organization.
Component units may also include organizations vidnich the City
approves the budget, the issuance of debt or Yyl of taxes. The City
has assumed a financial burden of the Louisvillen@oinity Improvement
Corporation (LCIC) as a result of various trangawti including the sale
and purchase of land. Also, the majority of thd@& board is appointed
by the City. The City has chosen the discrete owtf presentation of the
LCIC because it provides services to the primaryegoment and the
citizens of the City as opposed to only the primgogvernment. The
discrete method of presentation requires compamahtiata to be reported
together with, but separately from the data of ghienary government in
the government-wide financial statements.
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B. Basis of Presentation

A complete copy of the LCIC financial statementsyniee obtained by
contacting the City’s Finance Department.

The City is associated with the Stark County Coun€iGovernments,
which is defined as a Jointly Governed Organizatidhis organization is
presented in Note 17.

The City's basic financial statements consist ofvegament-wide
statements, including a statement of net assets atatement of activities,
and fund financial statements, which provide a mdegailed level of
financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement tofitias display
information about the City as a whole. These statds include the
financial activities of the primary government atedlcomponent unit. The
statements of the primary government distinguidivéen those activities
of the City that are governmental and those thatcansidered business-
type activities. The activity of the internal sees fund is eliminated to
avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses. Howetlee services
provided and used are not eliminated in the prootsensolidation.

The statement of net assets presents the finamcatition of the
governmental and business-type activities of thiy @i year-end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison letvagrect expenses and
program revenues for each program or function efGity’s governmental
activities and for the business-type activitiestwd City. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated witheevice, program or
department and therefore clearly identifiable topaticular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the esttiif the goods or
services offered by the program, grants and cartidbs that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requiremefita particular program
and interest earned on grants that is requiredetauded to support a
particular program. Revenues which are not clieskifas program
revenues are presented as general revenues oftyhevith certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses witigram revenues
identifies the extent to which each business segmoengovernmental
function is self-financing or draws from the geneexenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the City segregates transactiefested to certain City
functions or activities in separate funds in order aid financial
management and to demonstrate legal compliance.nd Hinancial
statements are designed to present financial irgftom of the City at this
more detailed level. The focus of governmental anoprietary fund
financial statements is on major funds. Each mijod is presented in a
separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregategrasented in a single
column. The internal service fund is presented gingle column on the
face of the proprietary fund financial statements.
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C. Fund Accounting

Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

The City uses funds to maintain its financial r@soduring the year. A
fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entith & self-balancing set of
accounts. There are two categories of funds: mowental and
proprietary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which mosegowuental functions
typically are financed. The acquisition, use, d@adances of the City's
expendable financial resources and the relatecerutiabilities (except
those accounted for in the proprietary funds) areoanted for through
governmental funds. The measurement focus is sermination of
financial position and changes in financial positio The difference
between governmental fund assets and liabilitiegejgorted as fund
balance. The City’s only major governmental fusthie general fund:

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating funchefQity.

It is used to account for all financial resourcgsept those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The general furldrizz is available to the
City for any purpose provided it is expended ongfarred according to the
laws and regulations of the City and/or the genlasas of Ohio.

Sreet Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund: This special revenue
fund is used to account for revenue derived frosolyae taxes and vehicle
registration fees at the State and County leveddus support the street
maintenance and snow removal departments.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the €ityigoing organizations
and activities which are similar to those oftenrfdun the private sector.
The measurement focus is upon determination of gg®iin net assets,
financial position and cash flows. Proprietary danare classified as
enterprise.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise activities are financed and operatedh imanner similar to
private sector business enterprises where the tiriterthat the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing dp@r services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financedegopbvered primarily
through user charges. The City’s major entergtisds are:

Sewer Fund: The sewer fund accounts for the provision of sapisgwer
service to the residents and commercial usersddaaithin the City.

Water Fund: The water fund accounts for the provision of wateatment

and distribution to its residential and commercisérs located within the
City.
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D. Measurement Focus and
Basis of Accounting

Sorm Water Utility Fund: The storm water utility fund accounts for the
storm water user’s fee which will be used for thgmpent of cost related to
the storm drainage system.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are pegpausing the
economic resources measurement focus. All assetsall liabilities
associated with the operation of the City are idetlion the statement of
net assets. The statement of activities presectedses (e.g. revenues)
and decreases (e.g. expenses) in total net asiseésnal transactions are
eliminated within the governmental funds as wellathin the business-
type funds, provided they are from dissimilar peogs. In addition,
internal balances within the governmental fundsshaeen eliminated.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for usingoavfof current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measureimeus, only current
assets and current liabilities generally are inethdn the balance sheet.
The statement of revenues, expenditures and changasd balances
reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and oth@&nding sources) and uses
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) ofect financial resources.
This approach differs from the manner in whichdbgernmental activities
of the government-wide financial statements argamed. Governmental
fund financial statements therefore include red@imn with Dbrief
explanations to better identify the relationshipween the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmiemas.

Like the government-wide statements, all propriefands and component
unit are accounted for on a flow of economic resesimeasurement focus.
All assets and all liabilities associated with tperation of these funds are
included on the statement of net assets. Thenstatieof changes in fund
net assets presents increases (i.e., revenuesjeanehses (i.e., expenses)
in total net assets. The statement of cash flowsiges information about
how the City finances and meets the cash flow neddss proprietary
activities.

Basis of accounting determines when transactioesracorded in the
financial records and reported on the financiatesteents. Government-
wide financial statements are prepared using theruat basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the modifiedruatcbasis of
accounting and proprietary funds use the accrualsbaf accounting.
Differences in the accrual and modified accrualdataccounting arise in
the recognition of revenue, the recording of def@rrevenue and in the
presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, iictwbach party gives
and receives essentially equal value, is recordeth® accrual basis when
the exchange takes place. On a modified accrs, b@venue is recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are mede and become
available. Available means that the resources vlcollected within the
current fiscal year or are expected to be collestah enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscalaye For the City,
“available” means expected to be received withitysilays of year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City rezeiwalue without

directly giving equal value in return, include imee taxes, property taxes,
grants, entittements and donations. On an acdrasis, revenue from
income taxes is recognized in the period in whith income is earned.
Revenue from property taxes is recognized in ttee f@& which the taxes

are levied (see Note 11). Revenue from grant#leenéents and donations
is recognized in the year in which all eligibilirgquirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timingequirements, which

specify the year when the resources are requirdeetased or the year
when use is first permitted; matching requiremeintsyhich the City must

provide local resources to be used for a specfiggose; and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are providedhe City on a

reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basienue from non-

exchange transactions must also be available bitfcaa be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following emwe sources are
considered to be both measurable and availableatgnd: income tax,
state-levied locally shared taxes (including gasolitax), fines and
forfeitures, grants, fees and rentals.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recogiieéate revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Property taxes receivables has been offset by reefeevenue since the
current taxes were not levied to finance 2010 djmera and the collection
of delinquent taxes during the available periodas subject to reasonable
estimation. On an accrual basis, collectible dglent property taxes have
been recorded as a receivable and revenue whileeomodified basis the
revenue is deferred. Special assessments noveeceithin the available
period and grants and entittements received befine -eligibility
requirements are met are also recorded as defevedue.

On the governmental fund financial statements,ivabées that will not be

collected within the available period have alsorbesported as deferred
revenue.
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E. Budgets and
Budgetary Accounting

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses amgmied at the time
they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund acaoyiméi on decreases
in net financial resources (expenditures) rathemnthexpenses.
Expenditures are generally recognized in the adouyiperiod in which
the related fund liability is incurred, if measuab Allocations of cost,
such as depreciation and amortization, are notgrézed in governmental
funds.

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data
reported in the basic financial statements:

Tax Budget: A tax budget of estimated revenue and expenditimesil|
funds is submitted to the County Auditor, as Secyeif the County
Budget Commission, by July 20th of each year, ffiergeriod January 1 to
December 31 of the following year. All City fundse legally required to
be budgeted. The purpose of the tax budget i®fiect the need for
existing (or increased) tax rates.

Estimated Resources. The County Budget Commission determines if the
budget substantiates a need to levy the full amotiauthorized property
tax rates and reviews revenue estimates. The Cssioni certifies its
actions to the City by September 1. As part of ttertification, the City
receives the Official Certificate of Estimated Rases, which states the
projected revenue of each fund.

On or about January 1, the certificate of estimagsdurces is amended to
include unencumbered fund balances at December 3Eurther
amendments may be made during the year if the E@ddirector
determines that revenue to be collected will begrethan or less than the
prior estimates and the budget commission find¢hesed estimates to be
reasonable. The amounts set forth in the finansiatements, as the
original budgeted amounts, represent estimates fitoen certificate of
estimated resources when the original appropriatiovere adopted,
whereas the final budgeted amounts, represent astirfrom the final
amended certificate issued for 2010.

Appropriations: An appropriation ordinance (the appropriated buggdet
control the level of expenditures for all funds,ghbe legally enacted on
or about January 1. Appropriations may not exea=guinated resources as
established in the Official Amended Certificate Edtimated Resources.
Supplemental appropriations may be adopted by Goaction. Amounts
shown as original budgeted amounts in the finarst@iements represent
carried-over appropriation plus the first approfoia ordinance for that
fund that covered the entire year, whereas thel tn@lgeted amount
includes these same appropriated amounts and ghplesuental
appropriations. During the year, several suppléateappropriation
measures were passed.
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F. Deposits and
Investments

Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

The City administration may at any time transferencumbered
appropriation balance or portion thereof betweamega classifications of
expenditures within an office, department or agendjjithin the last three
months of the budget year, Council may, by resoiytitransfer any
unencumbered appropriation balance or portion dierfom one
department to another.

The Appropriated Budget: The legal level of control has been established
by Council at the department level for all funds;ept the internal service
fund. Administrative control is maintained throutte establishment of
detailed line-item budgets. Appropriated funds may be expended for
purposes other than those designated in the apatiopr ordinance
without authority from Council. Expenditures pleiscumbrances may not
legally exceed appropriations at the level of appetion adopted by
Council. The appropriations set by Council mugha@ fixed unless
amended by Council ordinance. The Finance Diregtay make more
detailed appropriation allocations as long as thecaions are within
Council’s appropriated amount.

Lapsing of Appropriations. At the close of each year, the unencumbered
balance of each appropriation reverts to the résefund from which it
was appropriated and becomes subject to futureoppgptions. The
encumbered appropriation balance is carried ovethfo subsequent year's
expenditures and is not reappropriated.

To improve cash management, cash received by tlye i€ipooled.
Monies for all funds, including proprietary fundse maintained in this
pool. Each fund's interest in the pool is presgrte "Equity in pooled
cash and cash equivalents” on the financial staitsne

Investments are reported at fair value which isetbasn quoted market
prices, with the exception of nonparticipating nehase agreements,
which are reported at cost.

During 2010, investments were limited to interesState Treasury Asset
Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio). Except for investmeontracts and

money market investments that had a remaining ntyataf one year or

less at the time of purchase, investments are tegppat fair value, which is
based on quoted market prices.

Interest allocation is determined by the Ohio Citutsbn, state statutes
and local ordinances adopted under City Chartendeld these provisions,
City funds that may be required to receive intergications are: 1)
special tax levy funds, 2) the motor vehicle licerfand and 3) under
certain circumstances, the capital projects fuAd. remaining interest is
credited to the general fund.

33 (Continued)



City of Louisville, Ohio

G. Inventory of Supplies

H. Prepaid Items

I. Capital Assets and
Depreciation

For purposes of the statement of cash flows andfesentation on the
statement of net assets, investments of the castagament pool and
investments with original maturities of three mantn less at the time they
are purchased by the City are considered to be eaglivalents.
Investments with an initial maturity of more thdmee months are reported
as investments, if not purchased from the pool.

On the government-wide financial statements, inwées are presented at
the lower of cost or market on a first-in, firsttduasis and are expensed
when used. Inventories of governmental funds &ated at cost, while
inventories of proprietary funds are stated atltveer of cost or market.
For all funds, cost is determined on a first-imstfout basis. The cost of
inventory items is recorded as an expenditure/esgp@mthe governmental
and proprietary funds when used under the consomptiethod.

Payments made to vendors for services that wilkebeperiods beyond
December 31, 2010 are recorded as prepaid itemg tise consumption
method. A current asset for the prepaid amoungédsrded at the time of
the purchase and an expenditure or expense iseedarthe year in which
services are consumed.

Governmental capital assets are those assets poffisglly related to
activities reported in the proprietary funds. Thessets generally result
from expenditures in the governmental funds. Tlessets are reported in
the governmental activities column of the governmveide statement of
net assets but are not reported in the fund firdrstatements. Capital
assets utilized by the proprietary funds are regbloth in the business-
type activities column of the government-wide staat of net assets and
in the respective funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (omestizd historical cost) and
updated for additions and retirements during thar.yeDonated capital
assets are recorded at their fair market values #ee date received. The
City maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000The City's

infrastructure consists of roads, and water andeselines. All

infrastructure assets belonging to business-typeitaes are reported as
such, whereas infrastructure belonging to governahexctivity is reported

prospectively beginning in 2004. Improvements capitalized; the costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not adlde value of the asset
or materially extend an asset’s life are not. redeincurred during the
construction of capital assets is also capitaliped usiness-type activities.

All reported capital assets are depreciated excegand and construction
in progress. Improvements are depreciated overetin@ining useful lives

of the related capital assets. Useful lives fdraistructure were estimated
based on the City’s historical records of necessamyrovements and

replacement. Depreciation is computed using tteegttt-line method over

the following useful lives:
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Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

Governmental and
Business-Type Activities

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings 30 - 40 years
Building improvements 10 - 40 years
Land improvements 10 - 20 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 3-15years
Infrastructure 40 years

J. Compensated AbsencesVacation benefits are accrued as a liability asbireefits are earned if the

K. Accrued Liabilities and
Long-term Obligations

employees' rights to receive compensation arebatéble to services
already rendered and it is probable that the enaplayll compensate the
employees for the benefits through paid time off@me other means.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability gisire termination payment
method. An accrual for earned sick leave is mamléhe extent it is

probable that benefits will result in terminatioayments. The liability is
an estimate based on the City’s past experiencena¥ing termination

payments. The entire compensated absences {alsiliteported on the
government-wide financial statements.

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-termigations are reported in
the government-wide financial statements, and aVyaples, accrued
liabilities and long-term obligations payable frgmoprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financial statetsen

In general, governmental fund payables and accliabdities that, once

incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in fudini current financial

resources, are reported as obligations of the furidiswever, claims and
judgments and compensated absences that will befjeen governmental

funds are reported as a liability in the fund fioah statements only to the
extent that they are due for payment during theeciryear. Bonds,
capital leases and long-term loans are recogniged|l@bility on the fund

financial statements when due.

L. Fund Balance Reserves Reserved or designated fund balances indicatatpattion of fund equity

is not available for current appropriation or us&he unreserved or
undesignated portions of fund equity reflectedhia governmental funds
are available for use within the specified purpasfabte funds.

The City reports amounts representing encumbrancesgntory and
prepaid items as reservations of fund balancedrgtivernmental funds.
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M. Deferred Charges and
Bond Premiums

N. Interfund Transactions

O. Net Assets

P. Operating Revenues
and Expenses

Q. Estimates

In governmental fund types, bond premiums and rEselacosts are
recognized in the current period. Bond premiumd @suance costs for
proprietary fund types are deferred and amortizegr ahe term of the
bonds using the bonds outstanding method, whichroappates the
effective interest method. Bond premiums are prteskas an addition to
the face amount of the bonds payable, whereasnissuzosts are recorded
as deferred charges.

During the course of normal operations, the City hamerous transactions
between funds, most of which are in the form ohdfars of resources to
provide services, construct assets and service débe accompanying
financial statements generally reflect such traisas as transfers.
Operating subsidies are also recorded as transféigese amounts are
eliminated in the governmental activities columiigh® statement of net
assets.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements foeedjpures or expenses
initially made from a fund that are properly allbt@to another fund are
recorded as expenditures or expenses in the resnmigufund and as
reductions of the expenditures and expenses ifutitethat is reimbursed.

Net assets represent the difference between aasdtdiabilities. Net

assets invested in capital assets, net of relagdd consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reducedhby outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisitioanstruction or

improvement of those assets. Net assets are eepasg restricted when
there are limitations imposed on their use eitl@ough constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation or through er&drrestrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations dfeotgovernments. Net
assets restricted for other purposes include amouot provide

transportation, general government, and publictheald welfare services.
The City applies restricted resources first wheregpense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestriatetchssets are available.

Operating revenues are those revenues that areaggaelirectly from the

primary activity of the proprietary funds. For t@#y, these revenues are
charges for services for sewer treatment and wseerices. Operating

expenses are necessary costs that have been thouawler to provide the

good or service that is the primary activity of fned. All revenues and

expenses not meeting this definition are reporsedica-operating.

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith generally
accepted accounting principles requires managetoenake estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported infittcial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results may diften those estimates.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

NOTE 2 - RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FUND NET ASSETS

During 2010 the City’s management conducted anyaisabf their business-
type activities reported within their enterpriseds. Previously, this activity
was reported in two major enterprise funds. Irefiart to improve financial
reporting for the current year as well as anti@dduture years’ activity, an
additional fund will be presented. The storm wéted will be a third major
enterprise fund and used to report activity thast wpaimarily within the
sewer fund. Fund net assets at December 31, 20@9been restated within
the business-type activity as presented below.

Business-type Activities

Storm
Water Sewer Water
Fund Fund Fund Total
Net assets at December 31, 2009  $ 5,125,749 3,996,918 $ - $ 9,122,658
Fund activity reclassificatic (114,427 33,89( 80,531 -

Restated net assets at January 1,  $ 5,011,31. $ 4,030,80i $ 80,537 $ 9,122,65!

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of opeons, and changes in
fund balance/retained earnings on the basis of rgypeaccepted

accounting principles, the budgetary basis as geaviby law is based
upon accounting for certain transactions on a ba$icash receipts,
disbursements, and encumbrances.

The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changeind balances -
budget (Non-GAAP basis) and actual presented fergéneral fund are
presented on the budgetary basis to provide a mgfhicomparison of

actual results with the budget. The major diffeemnbetween the budget
basis and the GAAP basis are that:

(a) Revenues are recorded when received in caslgébbasis) as opposed
to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis);

(b) Expenditures are recorded when paid in castigétubasis) as opposed
to when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis);

(c) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalar ekpenditure (budget
basis) in order to determine compliance with Oliw,land to reserve
that portion of the applicable appropriation asagga to a reservation
of fund (GAAP basis).

37 (Continued)



City of Louisville, Ohio

The adjustments necessary to convert the resuttperftions for the year
on the GAAP basis to the budget basis for the g#nand street
construction maintenance and repair funds arel@svia

Net Change in Fund Balance

Street
Construction
Maintenance
General and Repair

Fund Fund
GAAP Basis $ 166,243 $ 233,852
Revenue accruals 281,754 68,276
Expenditure accruals (344,747) (292,654)

Encumbrances (Budget Basis)

outstanding at year € (67,700 (31,805
Budget Basi $ 3555 $ (22,331

NOTE 4 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Primary
Government

The City's Charter specifies that deposits andstments of the City will
adhere to State statutes, except as modified byw@loOrdinance. The
charter of the City and the City's investment pplindicate that the
Director of Finance has responsibility for selegtidepositories and
investing funds that are not required to be usedafperiod of six months
or more. Under these provisions, the City is twitlideposits and
investments of City funds to insured demand demasibunts, certificates
of deposit, United States treasury obligationsjgalblons of any federal
government agency or instrumentality, repurchaseeaments, banker's
acceptances, bonds and other obligations of thte 8taDhio or the City of
Louisville, Ohio, without regard to length of matwyror interest rate, no-
load money market funds, NOW accounts, Super NO@owads, or any
other similar account authorized by the FederaleR&ss Depository
Institutions Deregulation Committee, provided tlgich accounts are
secured by collateral, and the State Treasurewsstment Pool (Star
Ohio).

Before transacting a repurchase agreement withrtecydar broker/dealer,
a master repurchase agreement must be enteredetween the City and
that particular broker.

The City had $310 in undeposited cash on hand wisighcluded as part
of “equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents.”
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A. Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failuttee
City’s deposits may not be returned. Accordingstate law, public
depositories must give security for all public fanmh deposit in excess of
those funds that are insured by the federal depasitrance corporation
(FDIC) or by any other agency or instrumentality tfe federal
government. These institutions may either spalfic collateralize
individual accounts in lieu of amounts insured by EDIC, or may pledge
a pool of government securities valued at leased 05 the total value of
public monies on deposit at the institution. ThHg/'€ policy is to deposit
money with financial institutions that are able abide by the laws
governing insurance and collateral of public funds.

As of December 31 2010, the carrying amount ofGitg's deposits was
$365,591 and the bank balance was $449,044. Tlebzdances were not
exposed to custodial credit risk as this amoumtsared and collateral held
by the pledging financial institution’s trust demaent is considered in the
City’s name.

B. Investments

As of December 31, the City had the following inwesnt and maturity:

Fair
| nvestment Type Value Maturity Rating(l)
STAR Ohio $ 3004015 58 AAAM

@ standard and Poor's rating
@ pays (Average)

The City has invested funds in STAR Ohio during@0BTAR Ohio is an
investment pool managed by the State TreasurefieeDfwhich allows
governments within the State to pool their fundsifivestment purposes.
STAR Ohio is not registered with the Securities aBeochange
Commission as an investment company, but does tgpémaa manner
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Compawy of 1940.
Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohsiiare price, which
is the price the investment could be sold for oeddeber 31, 2010.

Interest earnings are distributed to certain speeizenue funds based on
daily cash balances and the remainder is reporiethe general fund.
Interest revenue credited to the general fund duéfl0 amounted to
$2,967, which includes $949 assigned from othey foinds.

39 (Continued)



City of Louisville, Ohio

B. Component Unit

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Credit risk is the possibility that an issuer or other coydety to an
investment will not fulfill it obligation. Standdrand Poor’s has assigned
STAROhio an AAAm rating. The City’s investment jpgl allows certain
investments, however does not specify credit rating

Deposits

The carrying amount and bank balance of the Lollgs\Community
Corporation’s deposits at December 31, 2010 weB288. Of the bank
balances, none of the monies were collateralizéhl sécurities held by the
pledging financial institutions trust department agent but not in the
Corporation’s name.

Receivables at December 31, 2010 for governmentatsf consisted
primarily of municipal income taxes, property anthey taxes, amounts
due from other governments, accounts, special srseeds, and accrued
interest.

Due from other governments consists primarily ofiteements to be
received from the state. A summary of the inteegomnental receivables
follows:

Governmental Activities Amount

Cents per gallon and excise tax $ 142,758
Homestead and rollback 28,879
Local government 123,112
Motor vehicle tax 27,127
Estate tax 126,094
Permissive sales tax 12,336
Public utility property tax reimbursement 932
State and Federal grants 123,335

Total $ 584,573
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended DecembefB10, consisted of the

following:
Transfer from
Storm
General Water Water
Transfer t fund fund fund Total

Street Construction,

Maintenance and Repair fund $ 334850% - $ - $ 334,850
Nonmajor governmental fun 114,410 - - 114,411

Subtotal fund transfe 449,26( - - $ 449,26(
Governmental activities - 48,468 64,382
Total transfer $ 449,26( $ 48,46¢ $ 64,38:

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the that statute or

budget requires to collect them to the fund thaiiusé or budget requires to
expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debtice from the fund

collecting the receipts to the debt service fundielst service payments
become due, and (3) use restricted revenues call@cthe general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in othed$uim accordance with
budgetary authorizations.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Caganransfers totaling
$449,260. The general fund transferred $449,26Bd®treet construction
maintenance and repair, state highway, motor veHicknse, community
crime prevention grants, and local drug enforcengeats special revenue
funds and the debt service fund. These transfepsesent amounts
necessary to carry out the purpose of the prograor po receiving
additional funding and to cover shortages resulfmogn the retiring of
debt. Additionally, transfers of capital assetswaen the business-type
funds and governmental activities during 2010 aported as transfers.
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Primary Governmental Activities:. The summary of the governmental capital asset
Government activity as of December 31, 2010 follows:
Balance Balance
Governmental activities 12/31/2009 Increases Decreases 12/31/2010
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Lanc $ 197,76 % - $ $ 197,76:
Construction in progre 875,69 869,61. 1,745,30
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,083,45 869,612 - 1,943,070

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 518,362 50,482 - 568,844
Buildings and building improvements 1,454,995 22,987 - 1,477,982
Machinery and equipment 1,104,910 85,131 (90,711) 1,099,330
Vehicles 1,729,160 183,346 (164,026) 1,748,480
Infrastructur: 717,98. - - 717,98:
Total capital assets, being depreciated 5,525,409 341,946 (254,737) 5,612,618
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (130,983) (54,360) - (185,343)
Buildings and building improvements (694,937) (28,700) - (723,637)
Machinery and equipment (838,142) (46,338) 71,873 (812,607)
Vehicles (926,866) (134,367) 144,793 (916,440)
Infrastructur: (397,661 (27,048 (424,709
Total accumulated depreciation (2,988,589)  (290,813) 216,666 (3,062,736)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,536,8D 51,133 (38,071) 2,549,882
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 3,6102B $ 920,745 $ (38,071) $ 4,492,952

Depreciation Expense: Depreciation expense charged to governmental
functions for the year ending December 31, 20E& iBollows:

General government
Security of persons and property
Transportation

Leisure time activitie
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Business-type Activities:. The summary of the business-type activities’
capital asset activity as of December 31, 201@vall

Balance Balance

Business-type activities 12/31/2009 Increases Decreases 12/31/2010
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 312,987 3 - $ - $ 312,987

Construction in progre 184,35¢ 475,67: (4,040 655,98°
Total capital assets, not being depreci 497,34 475,67. (4,040 968,97:
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements 45,225 28,745 - 73,970

Buildings and building improvements 9,112,338 - - 9,112,338

Machinery and equipment 11,896 38,622 - 50,518

Vehicles 413,223 241,713 (146,033) 508,903

Infrastructur: 9,926,88. - - 9,926,88.
Total capital assets, being depreci 19,509,56 309,08( (146,033 19,672,61
Less accumulated depreciation:

Land improvements (10,462) (5,960) - (16,422)

Buildings and building improvements (4,149,009) (176,839) - (4,325,848)

Machinery and equipment (2,230) (2,975) - (5,205)

Vehicles (143,459) (41,698) 16,406 (168,751)

Infrastructur: (5,147,105 (163,900 - (5,311,005
Total accumulated depreciat (9,452,265 (391,372 16,40¢t (9,827,231
Total capital assets being depreciated. 10,057,29 (82,292 (129,627 9,845,37!
Business-type activities capital assets $ 10,554,63 $ 393,38, $ (133,667 $ 10,814,35

Depreciation Expense: Depreciation expense charged to business-type
activities for the year ending December 31, 201dxsifollows:

Amount
Water $ 202,743
Sewer 188,629
Total $ 391,372

B. Component Unit Component Unit: A summary of the component unit capital assets as o
December 31, 2010 follows:

Balance Balance
Component unit 12/31/200! Increase Decrease 12/31/2011
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Lanc $ 3099 $ - 8 - 3 30,99¢
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NOTE 8 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees earn vacation leave at varying rageed upon length of
service, from two to five weeks per year. Vacai®nequired to be taken
within one year of the date it is earned, exceptcrtain circumstances.
In the event of a termination of employment, death, retirement,
employees (or their estates) are paid for unusedtica leave.

City employees earn sick leave at the rate of iy for each 80 hours
worked. Sick leave accrual is continuous, withibmit. In the case of

death or retirement, full-time employees hired pt@oJanuary 1, 2006, (or
the employees’ estates) with ten years or moreeoVice are paid a
maximum of 1,200 hours of accumulated, unused kwake. Full-time

employees hired on or after January 1, 2006, véthdr more years of
service with the City, are paid 50% of accumulatedjsed sick leave to a
maximum of 1,200 hours plus 25% for hours in excekd,200 to a

maximum of 2,400 hours.

NOTE 9 - BONDED DEBT AND OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATION S

Governmental Activities. A summary of the governmental activities’ debt
and other long-term obligations as of Decembei2810 follows:

Amount Amount
Balance Outstanding Due in
January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year

Governmental activities
General obligation bonds
2001 Various Purpose
Bonds, 3.50-5.10' $ 279,000 $ - $ 25,000 $ 254,000 $ 26,00(

Other long-term obligations

Police pension liability, 4.25% 44,082 - 988 43,094 1,030
Compensated absences 184,132 85,910 109,041 161,001 84,431
Capital lease 79,29( - 79,29( - -

Total other long-term obligatio 307,50: 85,91( 189,31¢ 204,09! 85,46

Total governmental activities $ 586,504 $ 85,910 $ 214,319 $ 458,095 $ 111,461
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Business-type Activities: A summary of the business-type activities’ debt

and other long-term obligations as of Decembe2810 follows:

Amount Amount
Balance Outstanding Due in
January 1 Additions Reductions December 31 One Year

1993 Capital Facilities Refunding

and Improvement 3.95-6.00%
Unamortized deferred cost
of refunding
Unamortized premium

2001 Various Purpose
Bonds 3.5-5.10¢

Total general obligation bonds

Other Long-term Obligations
1996 Ohio Public Works
Commission Loan 0%

2001 Ohio Public Works
Commission Loan 0%

2005 Ohio Water Development
Authority Loan

Capital lease

Compensated absen

Total general obligation bonds

Total business-type activities

$ 1,410,009 - $ 285,000 1,125,000 $ 300,000
(34,983) - (13,653)  (21,330) -
3,619 - 1,259 2,360 -
1,116,00! - 100,00( 1,016,000  104,00(
2,494,636 - 372,606 2,122,030 404,000
183,099 - 24,413 158,686 24,413
298,489 - 23,879 274,610 23,879
47,270 - 2,257 45,013 2,347
115,392 225,900 116,147 225145 112,272
79,82: 40,40: 48,64¢ 71,57 40,271
724,072 266,303 215,342 775,033 203,188

$ 3,218,708 266,303 $ 587,948 $ 2,897,063 $ 607,188

General obligation bonds: General obligation bonds are direct obligations
of the City for which its full faith and credit aygedged for repayment.
General obligation bonds are to be repaid fromdatied unvoted general
property taxes.

The $254,000 Various Purpose Bonds mature seimaflyogressive annual
amounts ranging from $26,000 in 2011 to $28,0002@21 and bear
interest at rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.10%, getiyely. The bonds
represent general obligations of the City and weed in 2001 to retire the
City’'s $593,250 bond anticipation notes, which Hsbn used to fund
various capital projects and improvements.
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In 1993, the City defeased the Series 1988 Bond®rder to take
advantage of lower interest rates. The proceedbeiew bonds were
placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for aliture debt service
payments on the old bonds. As of December 31, ,28L6f the old bonds
have been called and subsequently redeemed. C¥1ti@5,000 Capital
Facilities Refunding and Improvement Bonds, $300,0@tures serially in
2011 and bears interest at rate of 5.125%. Thaaireng $825,000
represents term bonds, which are subject to mandeddemption ranging
from $300,000 in 2011 to $50,000 in 2017 (the mbtwf the issue) and
bear interest at rates ranging from 5.125% to 5,2@%pectively. The
Capital Facilities Refunding and Improvement Bondse general
obligations of the City. However, the debt is ss#d from revenues
generated from a .5% reallocation in the munidipedme tax rate.

The $1,016,000 Various Purpose Bonds mature serallprogressive

annual amounts ranging from $104,000 in 2011 ta2§I0 in 2021 and

bear interest at rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.168$pectively. The

bonds represent general obligations of the City wace used in 2001 to
retire the City’s $1,586,750 bond anticipation sotehich had been used
to fund various projects and improvements.

Loans. The $158,686 loan outstanding is an interest-foee from the

Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) for a watereliproject, and

requires equal payments over twenty years. Thel,$20 OPWC Loan
outstanding is an interest-free loan for a watevetp and requires equal
payments over twenty years. The $45,013 Ohio WBtevelopment

Authority (ODWA) Loan outstanding is a loan for tligast Well Field

conversion and raw water main, and requires praicignd interest
payments over twenty years.

Police pension liability: The City pays installments on the accrued liability
incurred when the State of Ohio established thestde pension system
for police and fire personnel in 1967. The lighils payable semiannually
from the general fund.

Compensated absences: Sick leave benefits will be paid from the fund from
which the person is paid. Most sick leave is geoch the general fund and
the water and sewer enterprise funds.

46



Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded dlot loans as of
December 31, 2010, including interest payments 9713014, are as

follows:

General oPwcC Police

Obligation Debt ODWA Loan Loan:s Pensiol

Principa Interes Principa Interes Principa Installmen
2011 $ 430,000 $ 121,781 $ 2,347 $ 1,768 $ 48,292 $ 1,030
2012 410,000 100,556 2,442 1,674 48,292 1,074
2013 425,000 79,567 2,539 1,576 48,292 1,121
2014 140,000 57,810 2,642 1,474 48,292 1,169
2015 150,000 50,630 2,748 1,368 48,292 1,219
2016-2020 700,000 138,865 15,489 5,089 156,015 6,926
2021-2025 140,000 7,140 16,806 1,715 35,819 8,547
2026-2030 - - - - - 10,548
2031-203. - - - - - 11,46(
$ 239500 $ 556,34 $ 4501 $ 1466« $ 43329 $ 43,09¢

NOTE 10 — CAPITALIZED LEASE

The City entered into capital leases during the yeathe acquisition of

vehicles. Capital lease payments are reflectedebt service payments in
the basic financial statements for the governmefftedds. These

expenditures are reflected as function expenditones budgetary basis.

Governmental and business-type activities capitdets consisting of
equipment have been capitalized in the amount 48 %3}7 and $508,926,
respectively. The depreciation expense of theset@gs reported within

governmental and business-type activities. Théta@ed amount equals
a portion of the present value of the future mimmiease payments and
the down payment respectively, at the time of agitjoh. The remaining

portion of the capital lease was used for nonchgpitisle improvements.

Following is a schedule of the future long-term imiam lease payments
required under the capital leases and the presdoe of the minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2010:

Lease Payments
Business-type

Year Activities
2011 $ 59,637
2012 120,997
2013 59,637
Total minimum lease payments 240,271
Less: amount representing inte (15,126
Total $ 22514
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NOTE 11 - PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes include amounts levied againstesl and public utility
property located in the City. Taxes collected froeal property taxes
(other than public utility) in one calendar yeae $&vied in the preceding
calendar year on the assessed value as of Janwéhat preceding year,
the lien date. Assessed values are establishédueb@ounty Auditor at 35
percent of appraised market value. All property réguired to be
revaluated every six years. Real property taxespayable annually or
semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is duec®waber 31; if paid
semi-annually, the first payment is due Decembendth the remainder
payable by June 20. Under certain circumstancede Statute permits
later payment dates to be established.

Public utility real and tangible personal propetéxes collected in one
calendar year are levied in the preceding calepdar on assessed values
determined as of December 31 of the second yearegireg the tax
collection year, the lien date. Public utility ¢hinle personal property is
assessed at varying percentages of true valueicputiity real property is
assessed at 35 percent of true value. 2010 publity property taxes
became a lien December 31, 2009, are levied aftot@r 1, 2010, and are
collected in 2011 with real property taxes. Publitity property taxes are
payable on the same dates as real property taseslok previously.

Tangible personal property tax revenues receivedaiendar year 2010
(other than public utility property) represent ttalection of calendar year
2010 taxes levied against local and inter-exchaetgphone companies.
Tangible personal property taxes received frompted@e companies in
calendar year 2010 were levied after October 19208 the value as of
December 31, 2009. Amounts paid by multi-countyptaers are due
September 20. Single county taxpayers may pay #grarasemiannually.

If paid annually, payment is due April 30; if pas@miannually, the first
payment is due April 30, with the remainder paydlyl&September 20.

House Bill No. 66 was signed into law on June 3% House Bill No.
66 phases out the tax on tangible personal propérgeneral businesses,
telephone and telecommunications companies, alrdads. The tax on
general business and railroad property was elimthah calendar year
2009, and the tax on telephone and telecommunitatiwoperty will be
eliminated by calendar year 2011. The tax is phase by reducing the
assessment rate on the property each year. Thejlhces the revenue
lost by the City due to the phasing out of the téix.calendar years 2009-
2010, the City was fully reimbursed for the losterue. In calendar years
2011-2017, the reimbursements will be phased out.
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The County Treasurer collects property taxes onalbetf all taxing
districts in the County, including the City of Lawille. The County
Auditor periodically remits to the City its portioof the taxes collected.
Property taxes receivable represents real propastgs, public utility
taxes, tangible personal property taxes and outstgndelinquencies
which are measurable as of December 31, 2010 anaHh there is an
enforceable legal claim. In the governmental furttie, current portion
receivable has been offset by unearned revenue she current taxes
were not levied to finance 2010 operations ancttikection of delinquent
taxes has been offset by deferred revenue sinceoltextion of the taxes
during the available period is not subject to reakte estimation. On a
full accrual basis, collectible delinquent propadyes have been recorded
as a receivable and revenue while on a modifiecuatbasis the revenue
is deferred.

The full tax rate for all City operations for thear ended December 31,
2010, was $2.80 per $1,000 of assessed value.aSdessed values of real
and tangible personal property upon which 2010 gntyptax receipts were
based are as follows:

Valuations for 2010 Collections

Property Category Assessed Value Percent
Real Property
Residential and agricultural $ 125,892,770 81.67 %
Commercial and industrial 24,898,800 16.16
Public utilities 27,700 0.02
Tangible Personal Property
General 102,620 0.07
Public utilities 3,202,411 2.0¢
Total $ 154,124,30 100.00 %

The County Treasurer collects property taxes onalbedf all taxing
districts in the county, including the City of Lewille. The County
Auditor periodically remits to the City its portiari the taxes collected.

The City’s municipal income tax rate is levied aogp salaries, wages and
other personal service compensation earned byemsidoth in and out of
the City and to earnings of nonresidents (excepticetransients) earned
in the City. It also applies to net income of Imgsis organizations
conducted within the City. Beginning January 1889the municipal
income tax rate was increased by .5% to 2%, withitiksrease designated
for the purpose of expansion of the City’s wastew#teatment and water
facilities as approved by voters. Tax receiptsthezefore allocated 75%
to the general fund and 25% to the enterprise funds
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The City allows a credit of 60% on income tax edrpatside the City and
paid to another municipality.

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

A few claims and lawsuits are pending against titye Gt is management's
opinion that the ultimate liability will be coverday insurance, and/or will
not have a material effect on the financial statgsie

The City has received federal and state grantsgdecific purposes that are
subject to review and audit by the grantor agenciesheir designee.
These audits could lead to a request for reimbugserto the grantor
agency for expenditures disallowed under the texitbe grant. Based on
prior experience, City management believes sudildigance, if any, will
be immaterial.

NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

All full-time employees of the City, other than radministrative full-time

police officers, and a full-time fire employee peigate in the Ohio Public
Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS ademsighree

separate pension plans: The Traditional Pensi@m FTP) is a cost
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pensman. The Member-

Directed Plan (MD) is a defined contribution planwhich the member
invests both member and employer contributions (eyep contributions

vest over five years at 20% per year). Under the Man members
accumulate retirement assets equal to the valumeshber and (vested)
employer contributions plus any investment earnithggeon. The third

plan is the Combined Plan (CO), cost-sharing, mplgtemployer defined

benefit pension plan. Under the CO Plan, emplayastributions are

invested by the retirement system to provide a fanmetirement benefit
similar in nature to the TP benefit. Member cdnitions, the investment
which is self-directed by the members, accumulateement assets in a
manner similar to the MD Plan.

All full-time uniformed City police and fire partigate in the Ohio Police
and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F), also a cost-shanimgitiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. All members of thpersion plans except
those of the Member-Directed Plan are provided chastirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustitege and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Members of the ierDirected Plan
do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including gieemployment health
care coverage. Authority to establish and amemefits for OPERS and
OP&F is provided by the Ohio State Legislature anel codified in the
Ohio Revised Code, Chapters 145 and 742 respectivel
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Each retirement system prepares a stand-alone cfalameport that
includes financial information and required suppatary information for
the plans. These reports can be obtained by gri6rOPERS at 277 East
Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by cal(i®14)222-5601 or
(800)222-7377 and OP&F at 140 East Town Streetur@bls, Ohio
43215-5164.

OPERS. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authdatymember

and employer contributions. Member and employentrdoutions rates
were consistent across all three plans (TP, MD @R{Jl. For the year
ended December 31, 2010, City employees were ejus contribute
10% of their annual covered salary. The City’stabntion rate for 2010
was 14%. The contribution rates are determinedaaietly. The City's

required pension contributions to OPERS for theryemding December
31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $151,895, $130,511 $ift¥4,864

respectively. The full amount has been contribifted2009 and 2008.
Approximately 86.2% had been contributed for 20lithwhe remainder
being reported as a liability within the respectivads.

OP&F: Plan members are required to contribute 10% ofr thanual

covered salary to fund pension obligations while @ity is required to
contribute 19.5% for police officers and 24.0 % fioefighters , of which

12.75% and 17.25% was used to fund pension plaespectively.

Contributions are authorized by State statute. Tity's required

contributions to OP&F for the years ending Decengfer2010, 2009 and
2008 were $71,636, $81,259 and $83,270, respegtivEhe full amount

has been contributed for 2009 and 2008. Approxiya3.7% has been
contributed for 2010 with the remainder being régmas a liability within

the respective funds.

NOTE 15 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

OPERS. The Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OBERS
administers three separate pension plans: thitiorzed plan (TP) — a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pensjdan; the member-
directed plan (MD) — a defined contribution plaand the combined plan
(CO) — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defineddd# pension plan that
has elements of both a defined benefit and defmoattribution plan.

OPERS maintains a cost-sharing multiple employdined benefit post-
employment healthcare plan, which includes a méditzmn, prescription

drug program and Medicare Part B premium reimbuesgnto qualifying

members of both the traditional pension and theltoed plans. Members
of the member-directed plan do not qualify for dacy benefits, including

post-employment health care coverage.
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In order to qualify for post-retirement health caceerage, age and service
retirees under the traditional pension and combjiads must have 10 or
more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Hleatare coverage for
disability recipients and qualified survivor redpis is available. The
health care coverage provided by OPERS meets firdtide of an Other
Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GARBtement No.
45,

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not man@R&RS to provide
OPEB benefits to its eligible members and benefesa Authority to
establish and amend benefits is provided in Chaptds of the Ohio
Revised Code.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authogitypiring employers to
fund post-retirement health care through their toutions to OPERS. A
portion of each employer’'s contribution to OPERSsé& aside for the
funding of post-retirement health care. Employentdbution rates are
expressed as a percentage of the covered payrelttdfe members. In
2010, the City contributed at a rate of 14% of cedepayroll. The Ohio
Revised Code currently limits the employer contiifiu to a rate not to
exceed 14% of covered payroll for state and loogbleyer units. Active
members do not make contributions to the OPEB plan.

OPERS’ Post Employment Health Care plan was estaddi under, and is
administered in accordance with, Internal RevenoeeC401(h). Each
year, the OPERS Retirement Board determines thepaf the employer
contribution rate that will be set aside for furgliof the post employment
health care benefits. The portion of employer Gbutions allocated to
health care for members in the Traditional Plan &&86 from January 1
through February 28, 2010 and 5.0% from March @ugh December 31,
2010. The portion of employer contributions allechto health care for
members in the Combined Plan was 4.73% from Janaamprough
February 28, 2010 and 4.23% from March 1 througheb®er 31, 2010.
The OPERS Board of Trustees is also authorizedtabksh rules for the
payment of a portion of the health care benefitwipged, by the retiree or
their surviving beneficiaries. Payment amountsyvdepending on the
number of covered dependents and the coveragdestlec

Actual employer contributions for the years endidgcember 31 2010,
2009 and 2008 which were used to fund postemployrhenefits were
84,386, $130,511 and $134,864, respectively. Tieafnount has been
contributed for 2009 and 2008. Approximately 86.28ad been
contributed for 2010. The actual contribution dhe actuarially required
contribution amounts are the same.
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The Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP) adoptedthby OPERS
Retirement Board on September 9, 2004, was effectanuary 1, 2007.
Member and employer contribution rates increasedasuary 1, of each
year from 2006 to 2008. Rates for law and publitetyaemployees
increased over a six year period beginning on Igria2006, with a final
rate increase on January 1, 2011. These rate sesedlowed additional
funds to be allocated to the health care plan.

OP&F: The City of Louisville contributes to the Ohio Rwdi and Fire
Pension Fund (OP&F) sponsored health care progeanspst-sharing
multiple-employer defined postemployment healthecplan administered
by OP&F. OP&F provides healthcare benefits inalgdicoverage for
medical, prescription drugs, dental, vision, MedicRart B Premium and
long term care to retirees, qualifying benefit pgants and their eligible
dependents.

OP&F provides access to post-retirement health careerage for any
person who receives or is eligible to receive atimgrservice, disability,
or survivor benefit check or is a spouse or elgitéépendent child of such
person. The health care coverage provided by OR&Ets the definition
of an Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) as dlesdrin GASB
Statement 45.

The Ohio Revised Code allows, but does not man@&&F to provide

OPEB benefits. Authority for the OP&F Board of $tees to provide
health care coverage to eligible participants anedtablish and amend
benefits is codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Red Code.

The Ohio Revised Code provides for contributionuregments of the
participating employers and of the plan membershto OP&F (defined
benefit pension plan). Participating employersrargiired to contribute to
the pension plan at rates expressed as percergagies payroll of active
pension plan members, currently, 19.5 % and 24dj &overed payroll for
police and fire employers, respectively. The Ofeigised Code states that
the employer contribution may not exceed 19.5 %hefcovered payroll
for police employer units and 24.0 % of coveredrpkyor fire employer
units. Active members do not make contributionsh®dOPEB Plan.

OP&F maintains funds for health care in two semasicounts. One for
health care benefits under an IRS Code Section tfidi and one for
Medicare Part B reimbursements administered astamil Revenue Code
401(h) account, both of which are within the defifeenefit pension plan,
under the authority granted by the Ohio RevisedeQiodthe OP&F Board
of Trustees.
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The Board of Trustees is authorized to allocateogtign of the total

employer contributions made into the pension ptathé Section 115 trust
and the Section 401(h) account as the employeribation for retiree

health care benefits. For the year ended DeceBihe2010, the employer
contribution allocated to health care plan was 8&'®f covered payroll.
The amount of employer contributions allocated tite health care plan
each year is subject to the Trustees’ primary nesipdity to ensure that
pension benefits are adequately funded and isdihtity the provisions of
Sections 115 and 401(h).

The OP&F Board of Trustees also is authorized tabdish requirements
for contributions to the health care plan by retsreand their eligible
dependents, or their surviving beneficiaries. Raytmamounts vary
depending on the number of covered dependentshantbiverage selected.

The City’s total contributions to OP&F for policed fire health care for

the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 20@8$8&,925, $39,965
and $44,084, respectively, 83.7 percent has bestnilwated, for 2010 with

the remainder being reported as a liability. $8,i€presenting the unpaid
contribution for fiscal year 2010 is recorded as iatergovernmental

payable.

NOTE 16 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss relate torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors andsams; and natural
disasters. The City has contracted with Ohio Gowent Risk
Management Plan, an Ohio government risk managepregram. The
Plan was formed in June 1988 for the primary pugpafsmanaging third-
party liability claims against its members. ThearPprovides property,
liability, error and omissions, law enforcement,tcanobile, excess
liability, crime, surety and bond, inland marinedasther coverages to its
616 members.

The City's settled claims have not exceeded insgranverage for the past
three years. The Plan has chosen to adopt thesfanth endorsements of
conventional insurance coverage and to reinsursetlteverages 100%,
rather than utilize a risk pool of member fundspiy individual and
collective losses up to a given retention, and theve excess reinsurance
coverage above the retention amount. Therefore, ity is only
responsible for its self-retention (deductible) amo The Plan reinsures
its coverage 100%, with various reinsurance congsanp to a limit of
$5,000,000 per occurrence, per member. The City fat had any
reduction in insurance coverage in the past theagesy

The City pays the State Workers' Compensation 8yste@remium based

on a rate per $100 of salaries. This rate is caledl based on accident
history and administrative costs.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Satements

The City has elected to provide dental and visiendfits through a self-
insurance program. The City used the general tondccount for and
finance its risks of loss in this program. Thiarplprovides a dental plan
with $50 per person deductible, and no deductibfettie vision. A third

party administrator reviews all claims, which ahert paid by the City.
The City pays all individual claims from the gerlefand. The City

contracts with a health insurance company to pewdedical/health
benefits for the City's employees. The City rendtgpayment to the
insurance provider based on the number of partitga

The claims liability of $1,126 reported in the geldund at December 31,
2010 is based on the requirements of Governmergedbénting Standards
Board Statement No. 10 which requires that a ligbibr unpaid claims

costs, including estimates of costs relating tauired but not reported
claims, be reported. The claims liability is basedan estimate supplied
by the City's third party administrator. Changesthe fund's claims

liability amount in 2010 and 2009 were:

Year ended Year ended

12/30/2010 12/30/2009
Unpaid Claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 2,340 $ 2,106
Incurred Claims (including IBNRs) 25,687 24,107
Claim payment (26,901 (23,873
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal ye $ 1126 % 2,34(

NOTE 17 — JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The City participates in the Stark County Coundil @overnments (the
Council), which is a statutorily created politicalbdivision of the State. The
Council is jointly governed among Stark County, iipalities and townships
with twenty-four participants providing twenty-seveepresentatives, which
direct the operations of the Stark County MetrdpaliNarcotics Unit and the
Stark County Crime Laboratory. The City appoimg oepresentative which
has a membership share based on the percentagentéotual financial

contributions to the total funding. Each participés entitled to vote its

percentage share. The board exercises total #ythwer the operation of the
Council including budgeting, appropriation, contieg and designating
management. Continued existence of the Councitlépendent on the
County's continued participation. The Council doest provide specific

financial benefits or impose specific financial dems on the City. The City
does not have an equity interest in the Counciharkeial statements of the
Council can be obtained from the Stark County Couofc Governments,

Canton, Ohio.
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City of Louisville, Ohio

NOTE 18 — DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

The component unit column in the basic financiakeshents identifies the
financial data of the City's component unit, Loullev Community
Improvement Corporation. It is reported separatelyemphasize that it is
legally separate from the City.

Louisville Community Improvement Corporation (LCIC): The Louisville
Community Improvement Corporation is a not-for-firofcommunity
improvement corporation, as authorized under Chapt@4 of the Ohio
Revised Code. The sole purpose for which the LCHS wrganized was to
advance, encourage, and promote the industrial,m@mal, and civic
development of the City of Louisville, Ohio by adias a designated agency
of the City, for the industrial, commercial, dibwiion, and research
development.

NOTE 19 — CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The City has issued Healthcare and Housing FadRiewenue Bonds to
provide financial assistance to St. Joseph CaréeCéar the acquisition and
construction of healthcare facilities deemed tarb#he public interest. The
bonds are secured by a letter of credit from FMa&rit Bank. Upon

repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquiaedities transfers back to
St. Joseph Care Center through a sale and leasdippektransaction.
Neither the City, the State, nor any political siusion thereof is obligated
in any manner for repayment of the bonds.

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting &iatls Board, the
bonds are not reported as liabilities in the acammng financial statements.
As of December 31, 2010 there were two series @afitHeare and Housing
Facility Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate ppalcamount of $7.18
million.

NOTE 20 — FUND DEFICIT

As of December 31 2010, two special revenue furadsahdeficit balances.
These deficits were a result of the application geherally accepted
accounting principles. The general fund providaadfers to cover deficit
balances in other funds; however, this is done wtssh is needed rather
than when accruals occur. The fund deficits for®@&re as follows:

Special Revenue Funds Deficit
Community crime preventiongrant $ 3,839
Local drug enforcement grant 1,154
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Combining Statements — Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account forrtbeepds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specifiedgmses. A description of the City’s special

revenue funds follows:

e State Highway To account for the portion (7 %2%) of gasolineeand vehicle registration
fees used to maintain state highways.

e Motor Vehicle License To account for vehicle registration fees recdive the municipal
permissive tax; used entirely for the purchase atiemial for resurfacing City streets.

e Mayor's Court Computerization To account for additional court fees designated
computerization of the Mayor’'s court and for thegaisition and maintenance of legal
research services for the Mayor’s court.

e Emergency Services Donation3o account for donations made by individualsupport of
the Fire and EMS Departments.

e Emergency Services Charge$o account for fees charged for paramedic sesvaf the Fire
and EMS Departments.

o Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) HazatyMion Grant— To account for
revenues received from the federal government as®dl wo offset costs related to flood
damage.

o Law Enforcement EducationTo account for fine monies used to educate greel public
regarding drunk driving.

e Law Enforcement Trust To account for forfeiture monies used to edudiagegeneral public
regarding drug abuse.

e Community Crime Prevention GrantTo account for revenues received from the siatk
federal governments and used to offset costs tetateommunity crime prevention.

« Local Drug Enforcement GrartTo account for revenues received from the statefederal
governments and used to offset costs related & érag enforcement.

58



Combining Statements — Nonmajor Governmental Fy@dstinued)
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund
The debt service fund is used to account for tlrmalation of resources and the payment of
general obligation bond principal and interest amdtain other long-term obligations from
governmental resources when the government isaibligin some manner for the payment.
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund
The capital improvements capital projects fundsislelished to account for financial resources to

be used for the acquisition or construction of magpital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds.
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2010

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash

and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Contracts payable

Interfund payable

Accrued wages and benefits
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid items
Unreserved, undesignated,
Reported in:
Specia revenue funds
Debt service fund
Capital projects fund
Tota fund balances

Tota liabilities and fund balances

Nonmagjor Nonmajor Nonmagjor Total
Specid Debt Capita Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
$ 345,829 $ 16,518 $ 129,975 $ 492,322
86,596 - - 86,596
43,150 - - 43,150
51 - - 51
$ 475,626 $ 16,518 $ 129,975 $ 622,119
$ 4,165 $ - $ - $ 4,165
17,901 - - 17,901
21,374 - - 21,374
5,347 - - 5,347
5,504 - - 5,504
32,354 - - 32,354
86,645 - - 86,645
390 - 90,845 91,235
51 - - 51
388,540 - - 388,540
- 16,518 - 16,518
- - 39,130 39,130
388,981 16,518 129,975 535,474
$ 475,626 $ 16,518 $ 129,975 $ 622,119
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Nonmagjor Nonmajor Nonmagjor Total
Specid Debt Capita Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Revenues:

Charges for services $ 323,175 $ - $ - $ 323,175

Fines and forfeitures 14,529 - - 14,529

Intergovernmental 204,326 - 115,835 320,161

Investment income 517 - - 517

Contributions and donations 6,035 - - 6,035

Other 4,949 - - 4,949

Total revenue 577,021 - 115,835 692,856
Expenditures:

Current:

Security of persons and property 296,815 - - 296,815
Transportation 165,071 - - 165,071
Capital outlay 132,348 - 125,835 258,183
Debt service:
Principal retirement 49,529 25,000 - 74,529
Interest and fiscal charges 2,189 13,898 - 16,087
Total expenditures 645,952 38,898 125,835 810,685
Excess of revenues under expenditures (68,931) (38,898) (10,000) (117,829)
Other financing sources:

Transfers- in 75,510 38,900 - 114,410
Net change in fund balance 6,579 2 (210,000) (3,419)
Fund balances at beginning of year 382,402 16,516 139,975 538,893
Fund balances at end of year $ 388,981 $ 16,518 $ 129,975 $ 535,474
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City of Louisville, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
December 31, 2010

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash

and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts
Due from other governments
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Interfund payable

Accrued wages and benefits
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid items
Unreserved, undesignated,
Reported in:
Special revenue funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Motor Mayor's Emergency Emergency
State Vehicle Court Services Services
Highway License Computerization Donations Charges
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ 28,376 $ 87,029 $ 30,680 $ 10,247 171,817
133 23,490 - - 62,973

12,875 12,336 - - -

51 - - - -

$ 41,435 $ 122,855 $ 30,680 % 10,247 234,790
$ 547 $ - $ - % 717 2,901
- - - 5,483 12,418
603 - - - 3,864
925 - - - 3,901
8,733 - - - 23,621

10,808 - - 6,200 46,705

298 - - - 92

51 - - - -

30,278 122,855 30,680 4,047 187,993

30,627 122,855 30,680 4,047 188,085

$ 41,435 $ 122,855 $ 30,680 $ 10,247 234,790
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Community Local
FEMA Law Law Crime Drug Total
Fire Enforcement Enforcement Prevention Enforcement Ngoam
Grant Education Trust Grant Grant Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
9,546 $ 8,134 - $ - $ 345,829
- - - - 86,596
- - 9,927 8,012 43,150
- - - - 51
9,546 $ 8,134 9,927 $ 8,012 $ 475,626
- $ - - $ - $ 4,165
- - - - 17,901
- - 12,208 9,166 21,374
- - 880 - 5,347
- - 678 - 5,504
- - - - 32,354
- - 13,766 9,166 86,645
- - - - 390
- - - - 51
9,546 8,134 (3,839) (1,154) 388,540
9,546 8,134 (3,839) (1,154) 388,981
9,546 $ 8,134 9,927 $ 8,012 $ 475,626
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Transportation
Capital outlay
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers - in

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances at end of year

Motor Mayor's Emergency Emergency
State Vehicle Court Services Services
Highway License Computerization Donations Charges
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

- $ - % - % - $ 323,175

- 23,490 - - -

- - 3,727 - -

25,464 80,974 - - 5,973

- 517 - - -

- - - 6,000 35

2,249 - - - -
27,713 104,981 3,727 6,000 329,183

- - 4,380 2,252 209,994

40,745 124,326 - - -

- - - 5,483 68,295

- - - - 49,529

- - - - 2,189

40,745 124,326 4,380 7,735 330,007
(13,032) (19,345) (653) (1,735) (824)

20,000 40,000 - - -
6,968 20,655 (653) (1,735) (824)
23,659 102,200 31,333 5,782 188,909
30,627 $ 122,855 $ 30,680 $ 4,047 $ 188,085
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Community Local
FEMA Law Law Crime Drug Total
Fire Enforcement Enforcement Prevention Enforcement Ngoam
Grant Education Trust Grant Grant Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

- $ - - 3% - $ - 323,175
- - - - - 23,490
- 3,344 7,458 - - 14,529

39,072 - - 28,375 24,468 204,326
- - - - - 517
- - - - - 6,035
- - 2,700 - - 4,949

39,072 3,344 10,158 28,375 24,468 577,021
- 2,271 6,515 38,902 32,501 296,815
- - - - - 165,071

39,072 - 19,498 - - 132,348
- - - - - 49,529
- - - - - 2,189

39,072 2,271 26,013 38,902 32,501 645,952
- 1,073 (15,855) (10,527) (8,033) (68,931)
- - - 8,506 7,004 75,510
- 1,073 (15,855) (2,021) (1,029) 6,579
- 8,473 23,989 (1,818) (125) 382,402
- $ 9,546 8,134 $ (3,839) $ (1,154) 388,981
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Municipal income tax
Property and other taxes
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Contributions and donations
Rentals
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Office of city council
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total office of city council

Office of the city manager
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total office of the city manager

Department of finance and tax
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total department of finance and tax

Mayor's court
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total mayor's court

Civil service commission
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total civil service commission

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 2,471,950 $ 2,471,950 2,472,685 $ 735
377,000 377,000 376,972 (28)
235,800 235,800 235,554 (246)
118,595 118,595 118,265 (330)
3,700 3,700 3,699 @
375,416 443,425 447,796 4,371
5,700 5,700 5,626 (74)
8,325 8,325 8,321 4
11,325 11,325 11,307 (18)
48,280 49,940 49,874 (66)
3,656,091 3,725,760 3,730,099 4,339
39,900 38,050 38,002 48
15,000 15,800 12,707 3,093
54,900 53,850 50,709 3,141
184,975 183,075 182,943 132
19,075 18,075 16,684 1,391
204,050 201,150 199,627 1,523
289,175 291,400 291,348 52
60,256 53,086 50,979 2,107
349,431 344,486 342,327 2,159
32,900 9,790 9,775 15
7,800 11,640 11,620 20
40,700 21,430 21,395 35
6 10 6 4
15,994 7,040 6,897 143
16,000 7,050 6,903 147
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Division of lands and buildings
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of lands and buildings

Department of law
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total department of law

Other administrative
Operations and maintenance

Total general government

Security of persons and property
Division of police
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of police

Division of fire
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of fire

Division of communications
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of communications

Division of street lighting
Operations and maintenance

Division of traffic control maintenance

Operations and maintenance

Total security of persons and property

Public health and welfare
Board of health
Operations and maintenance

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

28,925 13,250 13,054 196
94,148 80,448 78,112 2,336
123,073 93,698 91,166 2,532
42,800 42,800 42,739 61
25,700 17,500 17,490 10
68,500 60,300 60,229 71
178,000 148,650 146,579 2,071
1,034,654 930,614 918,935 11,679
946,900 917,070 916,447 623
173,145 160,495 154,861 5,634
1,120,045 1,077,565 1,071,308 6,257
234,175 196,575 195,177 1,398
92,125 86,425 79,920 6,505
326,300 283,000 275,097 7,903
146,425 167,051 166,945 106
110,225 177,089 176,983 106
256,650 344,140 343,928 212
118,000 137,250 137,153 97
12,200 8,900 8,687 213
1,833,195 1,850,855 1,836,173 14,682
77,125 53,675 53,018 657
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Community environment
Division of planning and development
Personal services 161,245 77,570 76,890 680
Operations and maintenance 55,166 39,016 38,452 564
Total division of planning and development 216,411 116,586 115,342 1,244
Division of housing and building code
Personal services 53,575 58,975 58,950 25
Operations and maintenance 4,625 3,775 3,596 179
Total division of housing and building code 58,200 62,750 62,546 204
Total community environment 274,611 179,336 177,888 1,448
Leisure time activities
Division of parks
Personal services 91,073 80,198 77,565 2,633
Operations and maintenance 112,450 101,050 98,910 2,140
Total division of parks 203,523 181,248 176,475 4,773
Recreation center
Personal services - 17,750 17,710 40
Operations and maintenance 1,000 1,010 1,008 2
Total recreation center 1,000 18,760 18,718 42
Senior citizens center
Personal services - 28,705 26,104 2,601
Operations and maintenance 55 270 205 65
Total senior citizens center 55 28,975 26,309 2,666
Total leisure time activities 204,578 228,983 221,502 7,481
Capital outlay 29,375 30,851 30,851 -
Total expenditures 3,453,538 3,274,314 3,238,367 35,947
Excess of revenues over expenditures 202,553 451,446 491,732 40,286
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets 7,500 7,500 7,491 9)
Advances - in - - 251,546 251,546
Advances - out - - (265,959) (265,959)
Transfers - in 30,784 31,867 31,867 -
Transfers - out (554,260) (484,727) (481,127) 3,600
Total other financing sources (uses) (515,976) (445,360) (456,182) (10,822)
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Net change in fund balance (313,423) 6,086 35,550 29,464
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,222,320 1,222,320 1,222,320 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 54,837 54,837 54,837 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 963,73: $ 1,283,24: $ 1,312,70 $ 29,46¢
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation
Division of street maintenance
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of street maintenance

Division of snow and ice removal
Operations and maintenance

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets

Advances - in

Advances - out
Transfers - in

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of y

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 1,579,725 $ 1,596,100 $ 931,165 $ (664,935)
8,945 8,945 8,067 (878)
1,588,670 1,605,045 939,232 (665,813)
268,300 272,860 272,803 57
1,637,389 1,623,039 967,111 655,928
1,905,689 1,895,899 1,239,914 655,985
63,000 63,000 62,928 72
1,968,689 1,958,899 1,302,842 656,057
(380,019) (353,854) (363,610) (9,756)

6,430 6,430 6,429 1)

- - 171,751 171,751
- - (171,751) (171,751)

334,850 334,850 334,850 -
341,280 341,280 341,279 (1)
(38,739) (12,574) (22,331) (9,757)

128,438 128,438 128,438 -

564 564 564 -

$ 90,26: $ 116,42¢ $ 106,67: $ (9,757

71



City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

State Highway Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation
Division of street maintenance
Personal services
Operations and maintenance

Total division of street maintenance

Division of snow and ice removal
Operations and maintenance

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures
Other financing sources:

Sale of capital assets
Transfers - in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of y

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 137,350 $ 29,075 $ 29,047 $ (28)
1,775 1,775 1,728 (47)
139,125 30,850 30,775 (75)
21,775 21,775 21,519 256
132,643 17,143 15,467 1,676
154,418 38,918 36,986 1,932
5,275 5,275 5,102 173
159,693 44,193 42,088 2,105
(20,568) (13,343) (11,313) 2,030
525 525 521 4
20,000 20,000 20,000 -
20,525 20,525 20,521 (4)
(43) 7,182 9,208 2,026
18,409 18,409 18,409 -
43 43 43 -
$ 18,40¢ $ 25,63¢ $ 27,66( $ 2,02¢
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

Motor Vehicle License Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation
Division of street construction
Operations and maintenance

Excess of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers - in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of y

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 159,425 $ 80,500 $ 80,425 $ (75)
575 575 517 (58)
160,000 81,075 80,942 (133)
204,325 124,325 124,325 -
(44,325) (43,250) (43,383) (133)
40,000 40,000 40,000 -
(4,325) (3,250) (3,383) (133)
86,088 86,088 86,088 -
4,325 4,325 4,325 -
$ 86,08¢ $ 87,16 $ 87,03( $ (133
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

Mayor's Court Computerization Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures

Expenditures:
Current:

Security of persons and property
Division of police
Operations and maintenance
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of y:

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 3,727 $ (273)
5,130 5,130 4,380 750
(1,130) (1,130) (653) 477
27,403 27,403 27,403 -
3,930 3,930 3,930 -
$ 30,20t $ 30,20t $ 30,68( $ 477

74



City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Emergency Services Donations Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Contributions and donations $ 400 $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ -
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Division of fire
Operations and maintenance 2,500 2,500 2,252 248
Division of emergency services
Operations and maintenance - 5,500 5,483 17
Total expenditures 2,500 8,000 7,735 265
Net change in fund balance (2,100) (2,000) (1,735) 265
Fund balance at beginning of year 5,782 5,782 5,782 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 3,68 $ 3,78 $ 4,047 $ 26E
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Emergency Services Charges Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 249,200 $ 317,075 $ 316,565 $ (510)
Intergovernmental 11,950 11,950 5,973 (5,977)
Contributions and donations 50 50 35 (15)
Total revenues 261,200 329,075 322,573 (6,502)
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Division of emergency services
Personal services 154,725 136,175 136,018 157
Operations and maintenance 152,428 201,056 198,373 2,683
Total expenditures 307,153 337,231 334,391 2,840
Net change in fund balance (45,953) (8,156) (11,818) (3,662)
Fund balance at beginning of year 156,233 156,233 156,233 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 13,178 13,178 13,178 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 123,45¢ $ 161,25! $ 157,59: $ (3,662
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

FEMA Fire Grant Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Expenditures:
Current:

Security of persons and property
Division of fire
Operations and maintenance

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Advances - in
Advances - out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of y:

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 38,000 $ 38,000 $ 38,000 $ -
38,000 38,000 38,000 -
- - 38,000 38,000
- - (38,000) (38,000)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Law Enforcement Education Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures $ 1,500 $ 3,350 $ 3,344 $ (6)
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Division of police
Operations and maintenance 1,500 2,300 2,270 30
Net change in fund balance - 1,050 1,074 24
Fund balance at beginning of year 8,473 8,473 8,473 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 8,47¢ $ 9,52¢ $ 9,547 $ 24
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Law Enforcement Trust Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Fines and forfeitures $ - $ 7475 $ 7458 $ a7
Expenditures:

Current:

Security of persons and property
Division of police
Operations and maintenance 15,280 29,380 28,805 575
Excess of revenues under expenditures (15,280) (21,905) (21,347) 558
Other financing sources:

Sale of capital assets 2,400 2,700 2,700 -
Net change in fund balance (12,880) (19,205) (18,647) 558
Fund balance at beginning of year 13,902 13,902 13,902 -
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 12,880 12,880 12,880 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 13,90: $ 7,571 $ 8,13t $ 55¢
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Community Crime Prevention Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 31,575 $ 31,575 $ 22,377 $ (9,198)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Security of persons and property
Division of police
Personal services 42,100 42,100 39,093 3,007
Excess of revenues under expenditures (10,525) (10,525) (16,716) (6,191)
Other financing sources (uses):
Advances - in - - 30,587 30,587
Advances - out - - (22,377) (22,377)
Transfers - in 10,525 10,525 8,506 (2,019)
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,525 10,525 16,716 6,191
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Fund balance at beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance at end of y $ - $ - $ - $ -

80



City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Local Drug Enforcement Grant Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive
Original Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 25,765 19,419 $ (6,346)
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of persons and property
Division of police
Personal services 34,350 32,625 1,725
Excess of revenues under expenditures (8,585) (13,206) (4,621)
Other financing sources (uses):
Advances - in - 25,622 25,622
Advances - out - (19,419) (19,419)
Transfers - in 8,585 7,004 (1,581)
Total other financing sources (uses) 8,585 13,207 4,622
Net change in fund balance - 1 1
Fund balance at beginning of year - -
Fund balance at end of y $ - 1 $ 1
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua
Debt Retirement Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Total revenues $ - $ - $ - $

Expenditures:
Debt service: -

Principal retirement 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 13,900 13,900 13,898 2
Total expenditures 38,900 38,900 38,898 2
Excess of revenues under expenditures (38,900) (38,900) (38,898) 2

Other financing sources:

Transfers - in 38,900 38,900 38,900 -
Net change in fund balance - - 2
Fund balance at beginning of year 16,516 16,516 16,516 -
Fund balance at end of y $ 16,51¢ $ 16,51¢ $ 16,51¢ $ 2
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actua

Capital Improvements Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Division of lands and buildings
Operations and maintenance

Transportation

Division of street maintenance
Operations and maintenance

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund balance at end of y

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 146,600 $ 115,835 $ 115,835 $ -
162,100 125,850 125,835 15
90,845 90,845 90,845 -
252,945 216,695 216,680 15
(106,345) (100,860) (100,845) 15
49,130 49,130 49,130 -
90,845 90,845 90,845 -

$ 33,63( $ 39,11¢ $ 39,13( $ 15
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Individual Fund Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Equity — Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) Aotual
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditur es and Changes

In Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

Water Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues.

Charges for services

Other
Total revenues

Expenses.
Current:

Personal services

Fringe benefits

Contractual services
Materials and supplies

Capital outlay

Total expenses

Operating loss

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Municipal income taxes
Intergovernmental
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Income before transfers

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers-in
Transfers - out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in fund equity

Fund equity at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund equity at end of year

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

758,775 $ 853,575 $ 853,619 $ 44
9,525 9,525 8,603 (922)
768,300 863,100 862,222 (878)
250,965 248,595 248,006 589
111,560 111,560 111,156 404
301,136 301,136 298,105 3,031
91,512 91,512 87,953 3,559
428,644 467,311 422,294 45,017
1,183,817 1,220,114 1,167,514 52,600
(415,517) (357,014) (305,292) 51,722
804,500 824,000 824,228 228
- 17,755 17,753 2
(165,550) (165,550) (165,549) 1
(63,125) (63,125) (63,123) 2
575,825 613,080 613,309 229
160,308 256,066 308,017 51,951
330,675 330,675 330,675 -
(837,900) (937,900) (887,558) 50,342
(507,225) (607,225) (556,883) 50,342
(346,917) (351,159) (248,866) 102,293
671,802 671,802 671,802 -
127,475 127,475 127,475 -
452,360 $ 448,118 $ 550,411 $ 102,293
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditur es and Changes

In Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

Sewer Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total revenues

Expenses.
Current:

Personal services
Fringe benefits
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay

Total expenses
Operating loss
Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Intergovernmental

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Loss before transfers

Other financing sources:
Transfers- in

Change in fund equity
Fund equity at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund equity at end of year

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 864,100 $ 903,300 $ 904,110 $ 810
1,750 1,750 1,729 (21)
865,850 905,050 905,839 789
323,990 312,325 311,822 503
131,985 131,985 131,366 619
357,392 351,492 349,364 2,128
81,475 81,475 73,737 7,738
154,624 541,334 541,280 54
1,049,466 1,418,611 1,407,569 11,042
(183,616) (513,561) (501,730) 11,831
- 504,900 361,400 (243,500)

(326,510) (326,510) (326,509) 1
(71,575) (71,575) (71,572) 3
(398,085) 106,815 (36,681) (143,496)
(581,701) (406,746) (538,411) (131,665)
507,225 607,225 556,883 (50,342)
(74,476) 200,479 18,472 (182,007)
432,583 432,583 432,583 -
9,301 9,301 9,301 -
$ 367,408 $ 642,363 $ 460,356 $  (182,007)
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City of Louisville, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditur es and Changes
In Fund Equity - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

Storm water utility Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues:
Charges for services

Expenses.
Current:

Contractual services
Materials and supplies

Total expenses
Operating loss

Non-operating revenue:
Intergovernmental

Change in fund equity
Fund equity at beginning of year
Prior year encumbrances appropriated

Fund equity at end of year

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 102,200 $ 110,600 $ 110,707 $ 107
155,334 147,559 130,793 16,766
18,425 18,425 18,385 40
173,759 165,984 149,178 16,806
(71,559) (55,384) (38,471) 16,913
9,800 9,800 8,298 (1,502)

(61,759) (45,584) (30,173) 15,411
77,727 77,727 77,727 -

57,084 57,084 57,084 -

$ 73,052 $ 89,227 $ 104,638 $ 15,411
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Statistical Section

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Repgresents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the infdioma in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementfargnation says about the City's
overall financial health.

Contents Page(s)
Financial Trends S2- 57

These schedules contain trend information to Hedréader understand
how the City's financial position has changed diree.

Revenue Capacity S8 - S16
These schedules contain information to help theeeanderstand and
assess the factors affecting the City's abilitye¢aerate its most significant
local revenue source(s), the property tax (andnt@me tax).

Debt Capacity S17 - S23
These schedules present information to help thieresssess the
affordability of the City's current levels of owtstling debt and the City's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Economic and Demogr aphic I nfor mation S24 - S25
These schedules offer economic and demographicétuats to help the
reader understand the environment within whichGhg's financial
activities take place and to provide informatioattfacilitates comparisons
of financial information over time and among govaants.

Operating I nformation S26 - S31
These schedules contain service and infrastrudataeto help the read

understand how the information in the City's finahoeport relates to the
services the City provides and the activities ifqens.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the informaticthése schedules is deriv
from the comprehensive annual financial reportgHerrelevant year. The City
implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2@@#pdules presenting
government-wide information include information bedng in that fiscal year.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Net Assets by Component (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

Governmental Activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net as:

Business-Type Activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net as

Primary Government

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net as:

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterteen

(1) Accrual basis of accounting.

010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 4,238,952 $ 3,251,988 $ 2,867,010 $ 2,372,382 $ 1,986,625
916,049 1,011,949 754,129 649,066 683,647
2,065,143 1,842,352 1,627,341 1,881,609 1,548,400
7,220,14 6,106,28! 5,248,48 4,903,05 4,218,67.
8,083,638 7,415,753 7,134,730 5,702,061 5,537,295
1,696,699 1,706,905 1,432,666 1,870,595 1,397,899
9,780,33 9,122,65i 8,567,391 7,572,65! 6,935,19
12,222,590 10,667,741 10,001,740 8,074,443 7,523,920
916,049 1,011,949 754,129 649,066 683,647
3,761,842 3,549,257 3,060,007 3,752,204 2,946,299
$17,000,48 $15,228,94 $13,815,87 $12,475,71 $11,153,86

(2) Last ten years of information will be reporteden available.



2005 2004
$ 1,571,996 $ 1,315,265
630,692 530,515
1,158,963 788,495
3,361,65 2,634,27
3,071,538 3,504,889
2,356,648 1,332,745
5,428,18! 4,837,63
4,643,534 4,820,154
630,692 530,515
3,515,611 2,121,240
$ 8,789,83 $ 7,471,90!




CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Changesin Net Assets (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 891,233 $ 907,759 $ 1,001,777 $ 709,418 $ 795,848
Security of persons and property 2,183,465 2,086,776 2,137,745 2,284,434 2,079,266
Public health and welfare 50,860 77,436 44,190 18,274 55,143
Transportation 681,247 512,414 919,320 762,015 573,215
Community environment 147,504 204,539 203,848 193,968 210,431
Basic utility services - - - - -
Leisure time activities 214,946 377,890 414,988 375,795 412,879
Other - - - - 46,864
Interest and fiscal charges 17,085 21,268 15,826 36,998 31,232
Total governmental activities expenses 4,186,340 4,188,082 4,737,694 4,380,902 4,204,878
Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,199,786 1,020,190 969,468 958,590 1,002,351
Sewer 1,074,184 1,059,981 1,198,911 972,275 936,774
Storm water 60,182 - - - -
Total business-type activities 2,334,152 2,080,171 2,168,379 1,930,865 1,939,125
Total primary government expen $ 6,520,49. $ 6,26825. $ 6,906,07. $ 6,311,766 $ 6,144,00
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for services
General government $ 234,515 $ 202,740 $ 218,902 $ 166,347 $ 153,256
Security of persons and property 329,559 359,129 292,330 219,194 283,904
Transportation - 2,655 3,261 - -
Community environment 4,535 5,740 4,126 7,887 21,500
Leisure time activities 31,227 78,195 69,806 83,516 100,634
Operating grants, contributions and interest 684,907 551,468 717,972 846,837 547,487
Capital grants and contributions 405,488 206,169 101,973 - -
Total governmental activities program revenues 1,690231 1,406,096 1,408,370 1,323,781 1,106,781
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for services
Water 863,578 797,045 756,040 735,974 671,160
Sewer 882,329 974,631 943,715 936,872 882,147
Storm water 130,395 - - - -
Operating grants, contributions and interest - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 385,583 92,696 - - -
Total business-type activities program revenues 2,261,885 1,864,372 1,699,755 1,672,846 1,553,307
Total primary government program rever $ 3,952,110 $ 327046/ $ 3,108,12! $ 299662 $ 2,660,08
Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities $ (2,496,109) $ (2,781,986) $ (3,329,324) $ (3,057,121) $ (3,098,097)
Business-type activities (72,267) (215,799) (468,624) (258,019) (385,818)
Total primary government net expe $ (2,568,376 $ (2,997,785 $ (3,797,948 $ (3,315,14C $ (3,483,915




CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Changesin Net Assets (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

General Revenues and Other Changesin Net Assets
Governmental Activities:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes
Income tax levied for:
General purposes
Grants and entitlements not restricted to sfpepibgrams
Gain on sale of capital assets
Investment earnings
Other
Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Income tax levied for:
Water utility services
Sewer utility services
Grants and entitlements not restricted to sppepibgrams
Gain on sale of capital assets
Capital contributions
Other
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary governme

Changein net assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary governme

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterten
(1) Accrual basis of accounting.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 496,221 $ 409,330 $ 382,049 388,416 $ 471,201
2,497,694 2,366,926 2,720,310 2,505,101 2,660,310
363,559 576,332 476,932 675,554 423,376
2,967 3,465 35,851 80,345 123,478
136,573 130,514 156,111 92,090 95,725
112,950 153,228 84,609 - -
3,609,964 3,639,795 3,855,862 3,741,506 3,774,090
262,921 402,106 427,932 374,217 458,188
569,643 448,213 459,763 427,388 420,648
- 73,970 704,787 93,876 -
- - - - 3,247
- - - - 6,667
10,332 - - - -
(112,950) (153,228) (84,609) - -
729,946 771,061 1,507,873 895,481 888,750
$ 433991 $ 4,410,850 $ 5,363,73! 4,636,98 $ 4,662,84
$ 1,113,855 $ 857,809 $ 526,538 $ 684,385 $ 675,993
657,679 555,262 1,039,249 637,462 502,932
$ 1,77153 $ 1,41307. $ 156578 $ 132184 $ 1,178,92

(Continued)

(2) Last ten years of information will be reporteden available.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Changesin Net Assets (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

Continued

2005 2004
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 818,463 $ 799,136
Security of persons and property 1,790,354 1,745,446
Public health and welfare 51,182 48,652
Transportation 777,963 427,472
Community environment 179,959 157,208
Basic utility services 3,323 147,327
Leisure time activities 384,713 337,237
Other 75,999 43,152
Interest and fiscal charges 44,398 52,827
Total governmental activities expenses 4,126,354 3,758,457
Business-Type Activities:
Water 974,699 912,997
Sewer 873,695 872,100
Storm water - -
Total business-type activities 1,848,394 1,785,097
Total primary government expen $ 5,974,74 $ 5,543,55
Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for services
General government $ 194,949 $ 153,639
Security of persons and property 269,294 208,530
Transportation - -
Community environment 25,975 27,238
Leisure time activities 97,213 93,835
Operating grants, contributions and interest 673,568 520,083
Capital grants and contributions 189,505 17,650
Total governmental activities program revenues 1,450504 1,020,975
Business-Type Activities:
Charges for services
Water 633,311 661,149
Sewer 776,018 702,058
Storm water - -
Operating grants, contributions and interest 396,640 7,257
Capital grants and contributions - -
Total business-type activities program revenues 1,806,969 1,370,464
Total primary government program rever $ 3,256,47. $ 2,391,43
Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities $ (2,675,850) $ (2,737,482)
Business-type activities (42,425) (414,633)
Total primary government net expe $ (2,718,275 $ (3,152,115
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Changesin Net Assets (1)

Last Seven Years (2)
Continued

General Revenues and Other Changesin Net Assets
Governmental Activities:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes
Income tax levied for:
General purposes
Grants and entitlements not restricted to sfpegibgrams
Gain on sale of capital assets
Investment earnings
Other
Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Income tax levied for:
Water utility services
Sewer utility services
Grants and entitlements not restricted to sfpepibgrams
Gain on sale of capital assets
Capital contributions
Other
Transfers
Total business-type activities
Total primary governme

Changein net assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary governme

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterten
(1) Accrual basis of accounting.

2005 2004
$ 392154 $ 498,705
2,275,376 2,122,773
468,249 313,728
11,500 22,640
61,390 26,557
77,557 79,781
(83,000) -
3,203,226 3,064,184
345,074 362,674
404,903 341,793

- 1,078,106

83,000 -
832,977 1,782,573

$ 4,036,20 $ 4,846,75
$ 527,376 $ 326,702
790,552 1,367,940

$ 131792 $ 1,694,64

(2) Last ten years of information will be reporteden available.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total general fun

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Debt service funds

Total all other governmental fur

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterten

010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 32564 $ 46,232 $ 123510 $ 72,746 3 68,818
1,750,719 1,570,808 1,313,692 1,763,654 1,285,317
$ 1,783,28: $ 1,617,041 $ 1,437,20: $ 1,836,40 $ 1,354,13
$ 1225502 $ 124,347 $ 29,837 $ 58,627 $ 99,256
626,680 384,404 430,865 358,102 346,350
39,130 49,130 139,975 91,218 59,769
16,518 16,516 9,721 9,721 18,216
$ 804,83( $ 574,39 $ 610,39 $ 517,66t $ 523,59

(1) Modified accrual basis of accounting, lastyears of information will be reported when avaiéab
(2) Last ten years of information will be reporteden available.



2005 2004
$ 112,984 105,992
1,028,901 707,650
$ 1,141,88! 813,64
$ 131,692 94,817
306,148 332,550
63,219 78,219
3,702 3,702
$ 504,76 509,28t
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Collection Years

Real Property Public Utility Tangible Personal Propgr Total Weighted
Collection Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Averge
Year Assessed Value Actual Value  Assessed Value Abdtalale  Assessed Value  Actual Value  Assessed Value Attalaie Tax Rate

2010 $ 150,819,270 $ 430,912,200 $ 3,202,410 $ 3,639,102 $ 102,620 $ 410,480 $ 154,124,300 $ 434,961,782  34.88%

2009 $ 157,324,730 $ 449,499,229 $ 3,145410 $ 3,574,330 $ 201,070 $ 804,280 $ 160,671,210 $ 453,877,838  34.86%

2008 155,453,660 444,153,314 3,045,550 3,460,852 4,648,576 18,594,304 163,147,786 466,208,471  33.78%
2007 153,045,720 437,273,486 3,631,830 4,127,080 8,283,620 33,134,480 164,961,170 474,535,045  32.56%
2006 136,070,320 388,772,343 3,691,530 4,194,920 11,458,776 45,835,104 151,220,626 438,802,367  31.90%
2005 132,639,260 378,969,314 3,689,360 4,192,455 11,334,888 45,339,552 147,663,508 428,501,321  33.18%
2004 129,106,510 368,875,743 3,572,100 4,059,205 16,521,012 66,084,048 149,199,622 439,018,995  33.40%
2003 116,572,560 333,064,457 3,485,590 3,960,898 18,189,506 72,758,024 138,247,656 409,783,379  33.13%
2002 113,920,700 325,487,714 3,374,300 3,834,432 21,806,152 87,224,608 139,101,152 416,546,754  32.81%
2001 109,646,050 313,274,429 4,103,090 4,662,602 24,496,624 97,986,496 138,245,764 415,923,527  32.53%

Real property is reappraised every six years wiitade mandated update of the current market
value in the third year following each reappraisal.

The assessed value of real property (includingipuitlity real property) is 35 percent of estindte
true value. The assessed value of public utilgspnal property ranges from 25 percent of true
value for railroad property to 88 percent for dliectransmission and distribution property. Geh
business tangible personal property was assesgeevious years at 25 percent for machinery and
equipment and 23 percent for inventories. Gerrrginess tangible personal property tax is being
phased out. For the collection year 2008 bothsygegeneral business tangible personal property
were assessed at 6.25 percent. The percentag@ifor 2009.

The tangible personal property values associatddesich year are the values that, when multiplied
by the applicable rates, generated the propertyeteenue billed in that year. For real propettg, t
amounts generated by multiplying the assessed waly¢he applicable rates would be reduced by
the 10%, 2 1/2% and homestead exemptions befong bédled. The 10% rollback for
commercial/industrial property has been eliminated.

Source: Stark County Auditor



CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Property Tax Leviesand Collections
Last Ten Calendar Years

) Percent of
(1) Percent of Outstanding Outstanding

Current Current Tax Levy Delinquent Delinquent Taxes to  Total Direct
Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Taxes Current Tax by Tax Rate
2010 $ 431,515 $ 423,913 98.24% $ 21,005 4.87% $ 70.70
2009 446,879 437,592 97.92% 49,380 11.05% 69.20
2008 456,814 445,017 97.42% 19,950 4.37% 69.20
2007 461,891 449,811 97.38% 8,861 1.92% 69.30
2006 423,418 413,019 97.54% 6,855 1.62% 69.90
2005 413,458 404,521 97.84% 7,383 1.79% 70.90
2004 427,776 375,616 87.81% 7,624 1.78% 72.30
2003 387,094 378,806 97.86% 7,594 1.96% 72.70
2002 387,265 379,486 97.99% 13,655 3.53% 70.80
2001 387,089 381,050 98.44% - 0.00% 65.10

Source: Stark County Auditor
(1) Represents amounts collected by the CountthiaCity during the year indicated.

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation
(2) Amounts prior to 2002 are not available.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Schedules of Principal Taxpayers - Real Property
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2010 2001
Percentage « Percentage «
Taxable Total City Taxable Total City
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
_ Value  Rank Assessed Valt Value Rank Assessed Valt
Taxpayer
HP Products Inc. 1,832,540 1 1.22% 1,295,190 2 1.18%
Jewel Acquisition LLC $ 1,804,200 2 1.20% $ 1,526,390 1 1.39%
Louisville Ventures LTD 1,447,780 3 0.96% 1,111,730 3 1.01%
McKinley Development Company LTD 891,410 4 0.59% - 0.00%
Groffre Investments 734,220 5 0.49% - 0.00%
Rhodes Roy T 659,830 6 0.44% 678,190 4 0.62%
NOM Louisville LLC 615,730 7 0.41% - 0.00%
CRC Ohio Properties LLC 594,250 8 0.39% - 0.00%
Metzger J B Co. 573,500 9 0.38% 467,060 7 0.43%
Peters Frederick K & Judith R 532,570 10 0.35% 404,670 9 0.37%
WNBC LLC - 0.00% 472,470 6 0.43%
Samual Ron - 0.00% 626,640 5 0.57%
Gino D & Filomena Brienza Trustees - 0.00% 398,220 10 0.36%
Samuel & Bilha Ro - 0.00% 441,09( 8 0.40%
Total of abov $ 9,686,083 6.42% $ 7,421,65 6.77%
Total City $ 150,819,27 $ 109,646,05

Source: Stark County Auditor
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Schedules of Principal Taxpayers - Personal Property
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2010 Telecom Personal Property (1) 2001 Personal Property
Percentage « Percentage «
Taxable Total City Taxable Total City
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Value Ran} Assessed Valt Value Ran} Assessed Valt
Taxpayer
Ohio Bell Telephone $ 83,390 1 81.26% $ - - 0.00%
Ameritech Advanced Data 5,620 2 5.48% - - 0.00%
New Cingular Wireless PCS LLC 5380 3 5.24% - - 0.00%
T Mobile Central LLC 4,610 4 4.49% - - 0.00%
TWC Digital Phone LLC 3,040 5 2.96% - - 0.00%
Jewel Acquisition LLC - 0.00% 15,748,830 1 64.29%
HP Productions INC - 0.00% 2,049,780 2 8.37%
Ohio Transformer Inc. - 0.00% 1,029,630 3 4.20%
Transportation Center of Louisville - 0.00% 743,470 4 3.03%
Chuck Sypolt Chevrolet - 0.00% 578,350 5 2.36%
Trilogy Plastics Inc - 0.00% 434,139 6 1.77%
JCM Family Inc. - 0.00% 345580 7 1.41%
Meridian Leasing Corporation - 0.00% 309,010 8 1.26%
Time Warner Entertainment Company - 0.00% 251,070 9 1.02%
Tamarkin Compar - 0.00% 239,11 1C 0.98%
Total of abov $  102,04( 99.43%  $21,728,96 88.70%
Total City $  102,62( $24,496,62

Source: Stark County Auditor
(1) Now being reported as Telecom Personal Propearpyersonal property taxpayers are no longer nedjto file a return.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Schedules of Principal Taxpayers- Public Utility
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2010 2001
Percentage « Percentage «
Taxable Total City Taxable Total City
Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable
Value Ran} Assessed Valt Value Ran} Assessed Valt
Taxpayer
Ohio Power $ 3,005,680 1 93.86% $ 1985970 1 48.40%
Ohio Bell Telephone Co. - 0.00% 939,830 2 22.91%
East Ohio Gas Co. 196,710 2 6.14% 168,760 4 4.11%
Norfolk Souther 20 3 0.00% 253,13( 3 6.17%
Total of abov $ 3,202,411 100.009 $ 3,347,69 81.59%
Total City $ 3,202,411 $ 4,103,09

Source: Stark County Auditor
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Income Tax Rates and Collections
Last Ten Calendar Years

Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage

of Taxes of Taxes Taxes of Taxes Change
Tax Tax Total Tax Taxes from from Taxes From from From from from

Year Rate Collected Withholding  Withholding Net Profits _et\Profits Individuals  Individuals _ Prior Year
201C 2.00% $ 3,296,991 $ 1,977,80: 59.99% $ 237,80t 7.21% $ 1,081,30 32.80¥ 0.83%
200¢ 2.0C 3,269,76! 1,907,60: 58.3¢ 206,36¢ 6.31 1,155,801 35.3¢ -5.45%
200¢ 2.0C 3,458,40 1,998,91 57.8( 251,89: 7.2¢ 1,207,59: 34.9: -0.15%
2007 2.0C 3,463,64 1,898,43 54.8] 280,74 8.11 1,284,46' 37.0¢ 3.93%
200¢ 2.0C 3,332,791 1,849,17! 55.4¢ 207,59: 6.2% 1,276,03 38.2¢ 14.51%
2005 2.00 2,910,456 1,755,042 60.30 161,615 5.55 1,059,3536.40 0.36%
2004 2.00 2,900,015 2,045,268 70.53 186,904 6.44 677,418 .3623 2.01%
2003 2.00 2,842,964 1,952,242 68.67 163,687 5.76 727,035 .5725 3.09%
2002 2.00 2,757,672 1,891,233 68.58 140,015 5.08 726,425 .3426 -1.39%
2001 2.00 2,796,610 1,920,439 68.67 169,502 6.06 706,668 .2725 -4.55%

Source: City income tax records.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Years

Governmental Activities (1)

Business-Type Activities (1)

Total

General General Primary Percentage
Fiscal Obligation Capital Revenue Obligation OPWC OWDA ap(al Govern- of Personal
Yeal Bonds Lease Bonds Bonds Loans Loan: Lease men Income
2010 $ 254,000 $ -0 $ - $2122,030 $ 433,296 $ 45,013 $ 225145 $3,079,484 1.42%
2009 279,000 79,290 - 2,494,636 481,588 47,270 115,392 3,497,176 1.67%
2008 303,000 155,434 - 2,845,477 529,880 49,439 221,670 4,104,900 1.96%
2007 326,000 - - 3,179,670 578,172 51,525 - 4,135,367 1.46%
2006 348,000 51,814 - 3,492,388 626,464 54,503 - 4,573,169 1.77%
2005 495,000 155,417 - 3,792,687 674,756 55,457 - 5,173,317 1.99%
2004 635,000 193,285 - 4,067,738 723,048 - - 5,619,071 2.24%
2003 765,000 132,099 1,090,000 4,335,603 771,340 - - 7,094,042 2.91%
2002 889,000 61,904 1,170,000 4,592,400 819,632 - 14,298 7,547,234 3.13%
2001 1,008,000 86,493 1,245,000 4,832,240 378,403 363,527 19,977 7,933,640 3.33%

(1) Details regarding the City's outstanding delit be found in Note 9 in the current financialestaénts.

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterten
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding (1)
Last Ten Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Percentage of

General Actual Taxable  Outstanding Outstanding
Fiscal Obligation Revenue Value of Debt Debt to
Yeal Bonds Bonds Total Propert Per Capit  Personal Incon
2010 $ 2,376,030 $ -3 2,376,030  2.04% $ 258.66 0.92%
2009 2,773,636 - 2,773,636  2.38% 311.50 1.08%
2008 3,148,477 - 3,148,477  2.70% 353.60 1.22%
2007 3,505,670 - 3,505,670  3.00% 393.72 1.36%
2006 3,840,388 - 3,840,388 3.29% 431.31 1.49%
2005 4,287,687 - 4,287,687 3.67% 481.55 1.65%
2004 4,702,738 - 4,702,738  4.03% 528.16 1.87%
2003 5,100,603 1,090,000 6,190,603 5.30% 572.84 2.54%
2002 5,481,400 1,170,000 6,651,400 5.70% 615.61 2.76%
2001 5,840,240 1,245,000 7,085,240 6.07% 655.91 2.98%

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterteen

(1) Details regarding the City's outstanding debit be found in Note 9 in the current financial extaénts.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Direct and Overlapping Gover nmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2010

Percentage Amount

Debt applicable applicable

Governmental Unit Outstandin to City (1 to City
Direct:
City of Louisville $ 254,000 100.00% _$ 254,000
Overlapping:

Louisville Schools 22,870,000 44.90% 10,268,630
County of Stark - 2.10% -
Subtotal, overlapping debt 10,268,630
Total direct and overlapping debt $10,522,63

Source: Stark County Auditor's Office and Louisvi€ity Schools

(1) Applicable percentages were estimated by détémmthe portion of another governmental uniteatse
value that is within the City's boundaries anddiiw it by each unit's total taxable assessed value

S-20
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO

Ratio of Outstanding General Obligation Debt to Assessed Value and per Capita
and Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expendituresfor General Bonded Debt

to Total General Governmental Expenditures and

Revenue Bond Coverage
Last Ten Years

General Obligation Debt

Assessed value

Population

Debt outstanding

Ratio of debt to assessed value

Debt per capita

General Bonded Debt
Debt service
General governmental expenditures
Ratio of debt service to general

governmental expenditures

Water Revenue Bond
Revenue
Operating expensé
Net revenue available for debt service
Debt service requirements

Coverage

2010
154,124,300
9,186
2,395,000
1.55%

260.72

38,898

5,084,565

0.77%

1,152,85!
933,92t

218,929

100.00%

160,671,210
8,904
2,805,000
1.75
315

38,930

4,574,673

0.01

1,199,15
742,98(

456,171

100.00

008
163,147,786
8,904
3,195,000
1.96

359

38,907

5,456,963

0.71

1,152,54.
636,03:

516,511

100.00

Notes: ' Total revenue including local taxes and inter? Total operating expenses exclusive of depreci:

Source: City of Louisville basic financial staterten
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2007
164,961,170
8,904
3,570,000
2.16

401

57,495

4,779,407

1.20

1,110,19
706,80(

403,391

100.00

2006
151,220,626
8,904
3,925,000
2.60

440.81

173,587

4,403,804

3.94

1,129,34i
695,68!

433,659

100.00

2005
147,663,508
8,904
4,395,000
2.98

493.60

175,887

4,408,439

3.99

978,38!
680,18!

298,202

100.00



149,199,622
8,904
4,835,000
3.24
543.01

174,336
4,171,883

4.18

1,023,823
545,641
478,182
147,123

3.25

2003
138,247,656
8,904
5,260,000
3.80
590.75

176,275
4,394,441

4.01

1,151,014
640,579
510,435
146,123

3.49

2002
139,101,152
8,904
5,670,000
4.08

636.79

178,691
3,836,642

4.66

1,191,649
1,011,375
180,274
144,798

1.25

2001
138,245,764
8,904
6,060,000
4.38
680.59

199,691
4,336,322

4.61

1,430,722
411,892
1,018,830
143,158

7.12

S-23



CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Schedules of Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Employer Industry Employees
Louisville Board of Education Public education 400
HP Products Inc. Specialty tubing 318
St. Joseph's Hospice Hospice facility 304
J&J Foods LLC Grocery 117
Jewel Acquisition LLC Specialty tubing 140
Midlake Products Manufacturing 72
City of Louisville Municipal government 107
St Thomas Aquinas Private education 100
Louisville Pharmacy Inc. Pharmaceutical 38
Magnetic Technologies Transformers 38
Trilogy Plastics Manufacturing -
Ohio Transformer Transformer rebuilding -
Total Top Ten Employe 1,63¢
Total employment within the Ci 2,47¢

Source: City of Louisville

2010
Rank Employment Employees
1 16.16% 375
2 12.85% 381
3 12.28% 219
5 4.73% 171
4 5.66% 419
8 2.91% 75
6 4.32% 129
7 4.04% 119
9 1.54% -
10 1.54% -
0.00% 78
0.00% 123
0.00% -
0.00% -
66.02% 2,08¢
2,327

S-24

2001
Rank

[any
G)G)ol—‘(J'l-bl\Jw

Employment
16.12%

16.37%
9.41%
7.35%

18.01%
3.22%
5.54%
5.11%
0.00%
0.00%
3.35%

5.29%

0.00%
0.00%

81.13%



CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Demogr aphic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Personal Unemployment Rate (3)
Total Personal Income School Stark State of

Year  Population (1) Income (5) Per Capita (3) Enroliment (2) County Ohio
2010 9,186 $217,340,760 $23,660 3,260 11.3% 10.1%
2009 8,904 208,923,456 23,464 3,199 8.0% 7.7%
2008 8,904 208,923,456 23,464 3,170 8.0% 7.7%
2007 8,904 283,147,200 31,800 3,209 6.2% 5.8%
2006 8,904 257,788,608 28,952 3,050 6.2% 5.5%
2005 8,904 260,317,344 29,236 3,239 5.9% 5.9%
2004 8,904 250,870,200 28,175 3,240 6.5% 5.9%
2003 8,904 244,192,200 27,425 3,239 6.0% 6.1%
2002 8,904 240,897,720 27,055 3,240 5.5% 5.7%
2001 8,904 238,003,920 26,730 3,186 4.1% 4.2%

(1) Source: U. S. Cens
(a) Years 2000 through 2009 - 2000 Federal Census
(b) Year 1999 - 1990 Federal Census
(2) Source: Ohio Department of Education
(3) Source: Ohio Department of Job and Family 8esv
(4) Source: Stark County Auditor
(5) Computation of per capita personal income mliétd by population
Note: Information directly related the City of Lawille is not available.
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Operating Indicator s by Function/Program
Last NineYears

2010 2009
Function/Program
General government
Council and clerk
Number of legislation passed 76 73
Number of planning commission docket items 9 17
Zoning board of appeals docket items 10 12
Finance Department
Number of W-2"s issued 107 120
Number of checks issued 2,327 2,585
Amount of checks paid $ 5,333,471 3,483,854
Interest earnings for fiscal year (cash basis) $ 6,242 22,487
General fund year end cash balances $ 1,378,449,275,097
Income tax fund year end cash balances $ - -
Water revenue fund year end cash balances$ 366,130251,353
Sewer revenue fund year end cash balances 203,009132,385
Property tax revenue $ 414,335 448,812
Income Tax Department
Number of individual returns 3,323 3,378
Number of business returns 464 442
Number of business withholding accounts 381 500
Income tax receipts collected $ 3,296,913 3,221,415
Building Department Indicators
Residential permits issued 4 6
Estimated value of residential permits $ 720,000 1,004,900
Commercial/institutional permits issued 5 3
Estimated value of commercial/insitutional $ 35,684,16 1,519,000
Total zoning permit fees 4,535 4,413
Security of persons & property
Police
Total calls for services 4,486 4,052
number of traffic citations issued 555 507
number of criminal arrests 388 266
number of accident reports completed 181 179
Motor vehicle accidents 181 179
Gasoline costs of fleet $ 29,637 21,612
Fire
EMS calls 965 916
EMS collections $ 312,588 323,875
Fire calls 350 473
Leisuretimeactivities
Recreation
Adult volleyball and softball leagues - 300
Youth baseball league - 800
Jump rope clinics - 100
Fishing derbies (2 per year) 80 80
60

Bowling leagues (kids) -

N
o
[e7)

58
16

118
2,718
5,580,210
94,094
377,761
651,097
138,146
35,888
388,954

3,201
422
485
3,548,403

8
1,303,780
1
2,210,358
5,096

4,070
455
236
184
184

33,243

798
270,048
561

300
800
100

80
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66
30
25

116
2,591
3,538,207
146,200
686,697
714,309
111,487
643,743
472,997

3,377
449
446
3,463,645

19
3,876,895
4,500,000

6,826

4,121
593
264
192
192

24,939

919
187,866
325

250
800
60
60

N
o
(o]

53
21

112
2,558
3,568,564
126,993
526,675
363,547
96,579
475,245
465,349

4,806

260

432
3,301,769

31
5,194,200

1
1,200,000
5,189

4,212
814
170

2
25,114

710
205,904
319

250
900
60
40

N
o
9]

60
17
13

116
2,555
2,934,428
67,438
426,293
265,554
72,964
334,587
441,153

4,740

272

381
2,906,533

63
9,623,405

6,463

4,012
839

211

19,567

752
204,797
335

250
900

60
100

2004

58
15
14

135
2,439
2,826,234
25,459
413,293
94,206
99,307
197,357
394,963

4,725

268

380
2,900,015

66
9,612,196

1
720,000
7,048

3,953
582

243

13,587

791
168,454
339

250
900

60
100



N
o
w

56
12
12

128
2,449
2,594,987
11,432
288,451
23,073
110,076
207,837
399,084

4,722
268

382
2,842,964

55
9,069,164

6,719

3,915
660

231

13,220

759
210,686
265

2002

54
19
26

124
2,599
2,841,059
39,007
326,186
91,362
72,522
252,646
403,747

4,739

255

381
2,757,672

50
7,385,695
5
17,189,527
5,943

3,725
728

252

10,404

707
149,487
246

(Continued)
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO
Operating Indicator s by Function/Program
Last NineYears

2010
Function/Program
Transportation
Amount spent on paving streets $ 124,325
Gasoline fuel in gallons 27,427
Cost of salt purchased $ 18,632
Cost of salt per ton $ 46
Water Department
Total water billed (in dollars) $ 765,648
Total sewer billed (in dollars) $ 864,779
Total storm water billed (in dollars) $ 111,044
Water bills issued 21,485

Average water treated daily (million gallons/day) 480
Total flow of wastewater treatment plant

(millions of gallons) 476
Average daily flow (millions of gallons per day) 1
Tons of dry sludge removed 157

Source: City of Louisville

(1) Information prior to 2002 is not available.

2009 2008
90,786 320,000
24,564 22,581
38,045 44,995
47 34
736,910 664,630
866,087 800,908
111,426 111,332
21,508 21,457
931,000 990,000
500 500
2 2
225 182

S-28
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149,480
22,119
43,950

34

641,529
796,070
110,460

21,426
960,330

541

191

N
o
(o]

138,363
28,286
30,105

32

574,834
680,415
107,816

21,251
960,330

548

526

N
o
9]

240,436
30,530
45,244

32

526,164
698,895

20,744
960,330

566

121

2004

139,723
24,842
35,865

32

479,900
633,457

20,311
873,000

614

127



N
o
w

107,287
27,723
41,841

30

473,166
628,361

19,940
873,000

587

203

2002

121,589
28,073
21,301

30

470,886
626,191

19,684
873,000

511
1
99
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Five Years

Function/Program

General government
City Manager
Finance
Law
Council
Civil service
Other

Security of personsand property
Police
Fire and EMS
Dispatchers
Administration
School crossing guards

Leisuretime activities: Recreation
Parks

Community environment
Building

Transportation
Service

Basic utility services
Water
Sewer

Totals

Source: City Payroll Department W2 Audit Listing

2010 2009 008 2007 2006

2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
4.00 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.50
11.50 12.50 12.00 12.00 12.00
14.00 14.50 15.00 15.00 15.00
0.00 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50
0.50 0.00 0.50 0.50 0.50
2.50 4.00 5.50 5.50 5.50
6.00 6.00 9.50 9.50 9.50
2.00 2.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
3.00 8.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
4.50 1.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
4.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
57.5( 68.5( 76.0( 76.5(C 76.5(

Method: Using 1.0 for each full-time employee &80 for each

part-time and seasonal employee at year

(1) Information prior to 2006 is not available
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CITY OF LOUISVILLE, OHIO

Capital Assets Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Years

Function/Program

General Government
Square footage occupied
Administrative vehicles
Inspection vehicles

Security: Police
Stations
Square footage of building
Vehicles

Security: Fire
Stations
Number of fire hydrants
Square footage of building
Vehicles

Leisuretime activities: Recreation
Number of parks
Total park acreage
Number of libraries
Number of baseball diamonds
Number of soccer fields
Vehicles

Tranportation services
Streets (miles)
Number of streetlights
Number of traffic lights
Service vehicles

Sewer Department
Number of treatment plants
Sanitary sewers (miles)
Storm sewers (miles)
Vehicles

Water Department

Water lines (miles)
Vehicles

Source: City of Louisville

2010

30,000

55.0
687

21

009

30,000

2
534
7,500

55.0
687

21

08

30,000

534
7,500

55.0
687

18

007

30,000

4
1

1

7,500

300
7,500

=
~N oo N

[y

55.0
687

18
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06 2005
0a5,0 15,000
4 4
1 1
1 1
7,500 7,500
8 8
1 1
300 300
7,500 7,500
5 5
7 7
126 126
1 1
8 8
7 7
1 1
55.0 52.9
687 687
7 7
18 18
1 1
42 42
40 40
2 2
52 52
2 2

2004

15,000

45.7
687

18

2003

15,000

45.7
687

18

B~

45.7
687

18

2001

15,000

7,500

126

)

45.7
768

18

45
40

41
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

CITY OF LOUISVILLE
STARK COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION
This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

isan Poablitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
AUGUST 30, 2011

88 East Broad Street, Fifth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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